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CHAIR VICTORINO: . . .(gavel). . . Good morning. I'd like to call to order the Water Resource
Committee meeting for March 2 nd , 2010. We have quorum present. Let me first start out with
the Voting Members, our Vice-Chair Joseph Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Morning, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning. Also present we have the Upcountry Member, Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Our Member from Lanai, Sol P. Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And our East Maui representative, Mr. Danny Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Who?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ah, no, excuse me.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR VICTORINO: Excuse me. East Maui is Bill Medeiros. Excuse me!
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo. Good morning. Early morning. . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR VICTORINO: I was looking at my list, you know.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Change island.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Also, from...from the Haiku and Makawao area, our representative,
Mr. Michael Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I already made one mistake for the morning already.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR VICTORINO: Use my allocation. Gee, that's terrible. Okay, and also a Non-Voting--oh, the
Molokai...representative, Mr.--and our Chair--Danny Mateo is excused at this time. We have
also Non-Voting Member, Mr.--and from South Maui--Mr. Wayne Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning. And I am the Chair of the Committee, Mr. Mike Victorino. This
morning we have a couple of items and we'll be having a presentation on WR-7, Groundwater
Availability. And this morning we're fortunate to have representatives from the USGS,
Mr. Gordon Trimble [sic], Director of the United States Geographical [sic] Survey Pacific
Islands Water Science Center and also Mr. Steve Gingerich, who is a hydrologist from the USGS.
They will be giving part of the presentation a little bit later this morning. From the
Administration, I'd like to introduce our Director, Mr. Jeffrey Eng, from the Department of
Water.
MR. ENG: Good morning.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And also we have present Mr. Eric Yamashige. The Deputy will be here also.
Right now we have Corporation Counsel, Mr. Ed Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Good morning.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And later on this morning when we discuss our second item which is WR-1, the
Definition of an Agricultural Consumer, we will have Mr. Scott Teruya, Jeffrey Hunt, and
Clark Hashimoto will be also present, yeah? At this--and also before I forget--I'd like to
introduce our Legislative Analyst, Ms. Kim Willenbrink. And she's one of the best. She works
very hard. And, of course, our hard-working Committee Secretary, Mr...Ms. Tammy Frias.
Good morning. Okay, now that I get all the introductions out, if I missed anybody, I'm sorry.
Oh, and then I have to introduce our Chair, Mr. Danny Mateo, whose presence he has graced us
with.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning. Whew, I'm really...I...I made a mistake earlier so I'm trying to
catch up from that point forward. . . .(Laughter). . . Okay, we have two items that we'll be
discussing this morning. The first one is WR-7, Groundwater Availability. We'll have a
presentation from the USGS entitled, Groundwater Availability in the Wailuku Area, Maui,
Hawaii. And then, of course, the second one is WR-1(1). That is...that is dealing with the
definition of a Agricultural Consumer for the issue of water. Before I get started, I'd like to
accept public testimony. I'd like to ask everyone at this time to turn off all noise-makers,
whether they're pagers, cell phones or any noise-maker. Decorum will be followed in the
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Chamber. We will accept public testimony. We will ask if you haven't signed up, please sign up
outside at the desk, right outside of the lobby. You'll be allowed three minutes with one minute
to conclude. You...please state your name and who you are representating [sic]. So, with no
further delays--and with no objections--I would like to start public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. At this time, we have five testifiers signed up. First one will be and
would testifying on WR-7 and is Mr. John Duey. And he's speaking on his behalf. Mr. Duey.
And Mr. Duey will be followed by Mr. John Blumer-Buell, who will be speaking on both items,
WR-7 and WR-1. Good morning, Mr. Duey.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .
MR. DUEY: Good morning...good morning, Chair. (Pause) Good morning, Chair, Members. Just a
handout. The people here at the Planning Committee meeting couple of weeks ago got this
handout. I think Mr. Victorino, Council...and Mr. Pontanilla weren't here at that meeting. And I
think all the rest have that handout about the, the...how much water we need by 2030. My name
is John Duey, resident of Iao Valley. Thank you for listening to me, again. I'm glad you asked
Dr. Gingerich to come and make his make a presentation about his water availability. I don't
want to steal his thunder by any means. But the...as all of you know, that we do have a water
problem here on Maui, a shortage. To me, the most . . .(clears throat). . . to me, the most logical
and most economical way to get more water is restoration, stream restoration. As it...as it'll...I
don't know how in-depth Mr. Gingerich go into it in this...his report, but it states in there, I
think, Iao Valley alone, Iao Stream, would return 5 5 million gallons to the aquifer if we had
stream restoration. That'd be the easiest way and the quickest way to get water for whatever. As
you know, there's not going to be enough water for HC&S, Wailuku Water Company, the
housing that's planned for by 2030 and stream restoration which is demanded by law. So to me,
like I said, the easiest way, the quickest way to get water is...is stream restoration. I think the
whole Wailuku sector I believe is 12.1 million gallons if there's proper restoration to streams.
The second way-- 'cause the...the flyer that I handed out was where we're gonna get the water.
The second way would be, of course, the reservoir that I've talked about numerous amount of
times. This morning--you see, I live in Iao and I just came out and there's water at the...above
the debris basin. I don't know what's getting into the ocean this morning or not but we had...the
USGS has a gauge above Kepaniwai, above the intake. And day before yesterday, we had a little
freshet that is up to about, I think, three million...300 million gallons. The stream doesn't need
300 million gallons for the traditional customary rights for the...the ecological use of the stream,
but it does need some water. That hasn't been established yet. But my point is, it doesn't need
300 million. So my point is to capture some of that water, put it in the reservoir we've been
talking about at...at Waiale, and save that water there when we do have a big freshet like this.
So Mr. Freedman, who's also here, has done some analysis on that. And it'll get to you when we
get...the Water Use and Development Plan gets here which is on its way. Anyway, that's just all
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I wanted to say this morning, that there are sources. Conservation, of course, would be a way.
It's not the...the...the savior as far as I see it. The end result is gonna be...desal, I think, down
the way.
As I was watching Akaku last night, and I was watching the Kula Community Association
meeting and Mr. Bobby Brooks stated that...that we're not paying enough for water. I believe he
said Maui County was--Dr....doctor. I'm gonna promote you, Jeff, to doctor--Director Eng said
that we're the cheapest in the whole State as far as water rates. And Mr. Brooks stated we should
be paying more. And I've stated that before. And, in fact, my wife and I testified last time that
we should pay more for our water. Something's gotta happen to get water to get...to get, you
know, things gotta happen. We're waiting, of course, for the IFS for the...CWRM, C-W-R-M.
Ms. Baisa has said earlier that things move very slow in the County Council. I've heard her say
that. We filed a petition in June 25 th , 2004 and this is 2010, I think. And no...no reconciliation
has happened yet. We're looking forward to something Ms. Brielan...Ms. Thielen told 'em the
other day on the radio. I called in and said maybe in--sound like she said in two or three months
they might have a decision from them. Then we'll go on from there. So...
MS. WILLENBRINK: Four minutes.
MR. DUEY: My red dot is blinking. I...I know. So thank you much for listening to me. I appreciate it.
And, well, I'll be here again trying to pound it in your heads. We have a problem and we'll find
a way to get it solved. Aloha.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Duey. And we do appreciate your...consistent...diligence in
this area. Questions for the testifier? Yes, Mr.--okay, hold on. Mr. Pontanilla, Mr. Medeiros.
Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Duey, for this information.
MR. DUEY: You're welcome.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just a fast question. I...I don't know if you did any analysis. Yeah, I
agree with you that, you know, water rates should be increased. The second thing is that I don't
know if you did a calculation in regards to what happens with the sewer rates, because they
interact, you know, in the calculation as far as, you know, billing for water use as well as sewer
line, sewer use.
MR. DUEY: The answer is no. But I would think there should be some way if the rates, the water rates,
are raised the...that money should go in towards getting, you know, monies for the reservoirs or
something. And there should be a way to...segregate out the...the sewer rate out of the water
rate I would...I would think. But this...the bottom line is there's gotta be a rate increase
someplace down the line and quick.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Duey, thank you for being here this
morning.
MR. DUEY: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just wanted to ask, in your testimony you referred to a reservoir
along Waiale. Are...are you speaking to an existing reservoir or potential future reservoir?
MR. DUEY: Both.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Both.
MR. DUEY: The Waiale Reservoir exists. Some people, the old-timers, call it Valley Pond. It's behind
the correctional facility that some people know well. I don't...I don't know the correctional
facility.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do you know what the capacity is for that reservoir?
MR. DUEY: Yes, yes. I do. During the contested case hearing we had--about the Na Wai Eha water--I
think HC&S testified the capacity at, I...I believe, it's 36 million. I...I may be off on that. But
there are two reservoirs there. It was Number 73 and 74. My...my thrust is to build a billion
gallon reservoir there. I think Mr. Freedman done some calculations from a billion gallon and a
half...half billion, 500,000-gallon reservoir. Once the...the prison will go out sometime and be
moved to Central Maui sometime and that'd be more land available for the...for a reservoir. I
think the last--Carl, correct me if I'm wrong--I think the last estimate they had for a...a
billion-gallon reservoir is a $110 million. And I think in...2009 dollars to build
a...three-inch-lined reservoir. So you wouldn't have a...you wouldn't have a leakage from it.
So, yes, there is a reservoir there and that's where I'd like to see the...the big reservoir built.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And...and...you're suggesting that excess or surplus water
that comes down Iao and you mentioned the 300 million gallons a day be stored at these
reservoirs for times when we need to use that water.
MR. DUEY: Yes, and not only Iao but Waihee, Waiehu when there's a freshet. Waihee water, the lower
ditch, Spreckels Ditch goes directly to Waiale Reservoir now. And Waihee water's also...Waiehu
water's picked up in that. Iao water...part of that water is diverted in Kahekili Intake and that
drops into Spreckels there. And Iao water could be put into there without too much problem. Iao
water goes Iao-Waikapu tunnel out to...Kuikahi Road and drops down about 200 feet which
should have a...a hydro plant on it to build some energy. And that water could be put back in the
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reservoir also. So the streams have to have some water sooner or later. That's gonna happen by
law. And then, like I said, they don't need two or 300 or 900 million or whatever they flow at,
you know, at different times. So I'm...I'm saying catch that water and...and that excess water
and store it in the reservoir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you, Mr. Duey, for your testimony this morning.
MR. DUEY: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Any other Voting Members? Then I will recognize Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I get one question.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Nishiki, you had your hand up earlier?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: He said he had a question.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Mr. Duey, I know you and I talked about that one-billion-gallon
reservoir many times and the possibility when Maui Correctional Facility, if they ever move out,
as a possible area. You know, I was driving on Waiale Road and I...I know just below
Jesse Spencer's subdivision there is a, I guess, a detention basin. I...I don't know how large it is.
It must be several million gallons that can be, you know, water can be put in. What do you think
about, you know, the possibility of, you know, rather than Waiale, moving over to that area,
because that particular area is--that retention basin--is when I see, it's always dry? You know,
moving the water rather than Waiale because we still got to deal with the correctional facility and
just expanding that existing detention basin more towards Waikapu?
MR. DUEY: I...I would see no problem with that. It might be--of course, the treatment plant was built
would have to be moved over there where that's...that's, to me, not a problem.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. DUEY: But I don't see any problem but I think, like you indicated, that it's--I'm not sure--but I
think it is a retention basin runoff from Spencer Homes project. But there is an overflow there
and going into Waikapu Stream, if I'm not mistaken. So I don't see a problem with that.
It's...it's...it's a matter of--I know that DWS has their eyes on some land or something upstream,
way up. But then you're gonna get Waihee water. So down in this area where you're talking
about or the existing Waiale . . .(clears throat). . . excuse me, would have access to all the excess
water in Na Wai Eha. I shouldn't say excess but above what the stream would need. So whether
it's there or in the existing Waiale, I...I would have no personal problem with that, of course.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You're welcome. Any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
Mr. Duey.
MR. DUEY: Thank you very much. Aloha.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Next...testifier is John Blumer-Buell. And he's also testifying on his own and
he'll be testifying on both items, WR-7 and WR-1.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Aloha, Chairman Victorino and Members of the Committee. My name is
John Blumer-Buell and I came over from Hana yesterday to participate in some issues. I wanted
to testify first on WR-1 which I've been following on Akaku. First, I want to thank
Chair Victorino for allowing a very useful scope of discussion on the agenda item. Discussions
on property tax classifications, water use classifications and Planning Department protocol have
been very helpful in looking at and understanding the big picture. And correctly he keeps
bringing us back to the agenda item but...but letting it go in those directions, I think, has been
good. We talked about a lot of these issues during the GPAC and there's a lot of good people that
I've talked to off the record and on the record. And here's one of the ideas that I'd just like to
throw out to you. And that is that we...that we develop possible a list, a short list, of
classifications for agricultural consumers with a possible sliding scale for payments just like we
have with the property tax. Wouldn't be that complicated, the billing's done with computer so it
wouldn't be complicated. Here's my suggestion, short list. The list would include a
classification for plantation and industrial agriculture. Second, ranching and pasture. Third
classification, diversified ag which could include flowers, orchards, vegetables and so forth.
Fourth, forestry. Fifth, sustainable/community and education. And lastly, traditional and
customary rights which I believe are actually covered under the current State Constitution and
Water Code. So I think these classifications would match very well with the Focus Maui Nui
core values which is the very first document we looked at at GPAC, as the core values are
wonderful. And, of course, all the classifications would agree to conservation measures. And,
you know, this would be a sliding scale. And I'd be happy to, you know, if...if people are
interested in exploring this idea I'd be happy to...submit something back to you in a week.
And finally just as I wrote an article for the Hanaside News last winter. It's called, "East Maui's
Public Trust Water, a Financial Exercise." And I...I really hope you'll take the time to read it
when you have a few minutes. It...discusses the finances of the East Maui water situation and I
point out in a non-critical way that over the last 20 years HC&S and EMI have basically gotten a
billion dollars of subsidies from the public trust waters. And this article is not written to be
critical or try to recover money that we haven't gotten. It's written to make people think about
our future. How are we gonna get water storage? How we're gonna pay for these things? And I
think it's a constructive way to start a discussion on, you know, how we can...constructively
move forward and build reservoirs which we know we need. So hope you'll have time to take a
look at that sometime. The only critical feedback I've had from the article is that a couple
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farmers told me that even the dollar per thousand gallon ag rate is too low. So that would just
drive the figure higher. But for your information, HC&S and EMI are paying about one-fifth of
a cent per thousand gallons which is...which is...needs to be changed in the future. Mahalo.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell. Questions for the testifier? Yes,
Mr. Kaho `ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you. John, I...I missed your short list. You
began with the plantation and industrial. The next was?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: This is just...suggestions. One, plantation and industrial agriculture. And this
is the kind of agriculture you hear Warren Watanabe speaking to. Secondly, ranching and
pasture. You know, obviously raising cattle, raising all kinds of livestock, goats. I think they're
raising elk Upcountry, that sort of thing. Third, diversified agriculture which it includes
large-scale vegetable growers, flower growers and fruit, orcharding. You know, we have...grape
orchards as well at this point. The fourth one suggested is forestry. And the reason I put this in a
different classification is we have people that are making a long-term commitment. I'm talking
about, you know, 20, 30, 40 into the future years and they are an important part of restoring our
watershed as Mr. Duey pointed out. And I think they, you know, people that are willing to make
a long-term commitment to improve our lives without asking for any return in their lifetimes
are...should be rewarded with that rate. The second one--the next one was I call it sustainable
community and education. And yesterday there was a lot of talk. Warren Watanabe talked about
this. Mike Victorino talked about it. Jeanne Skog talked about it. And that's the importance of
education and getting the kids on board. And at your last meeting you had the head of the
Haliimaile Garden. And, you know, these...this is, these community gardens are a really
important place in our communities to get people interested, to have them get educated, to have
the keiki get, you know--my kids love gardening. Why? 'Cause their parents love gardening.
So these community gardens are a place where you can get the kids...engaged and have them
love working with the soil. And the last one was traditional and customary. I...I'm not an expert
on the rights of the Hawaiian Homes which may need to be considered, but the traditional and
customary rights are protected in the State Constitution and State Water Code. So that was my-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --short list.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And then in your proposal of this short list was a sliding
scale. So you're saying that there would be an...different assessment for each one of those
particular uses.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Right. I would...I would say that we currently have--and I stand to
be...conected by Director Eng--we have a basic charge for everybody. And then after that you
get your...you get your ag rates.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: And I think all of the people...all of these...activities that I discussed, I think
they're all worthy of the ag rates. So I would call them all agricultural consumers. And, of
course, they have to be held to the strictest conservation standards. I mean I heard that the
Haliimaile Garden had a...a broken pipe for a while. Well, they...they had to pay for it and
tighten up their...their...their use. But, you know, I think that's to be discussed just like during
your tax discussions you'll talk about rates for...rates...different rates for different people. And I
think it would be an easy thing to change from year to year. I would start them out all the same
and then take the input from the consumers, see how it's working and if one needs to be adjusted
up or down, then do so. It shouldn't be complicated.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. And then I just wanted to...comment
on your... your public trust finance... financial exercise. I think it's a... a good way of looking at
it from another perspective so.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: It's...it was really just written as food for thought. I mean we really need to
spend more time about--and this is why I mentioned the, you know, the GPAC and Focus Maui
Nui. These are...we should be focusing on solutions and how we can get there. And it's, you
know, we're really living in a time when the wheel does need to be re-invented. And this is
thinking about problems is the way to do it. Yeah, so, mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Blumer-Buell, thank you for your
presence this morning after being here all day yesterday. Thank you for making the commitment
and for engaging in our process. What Member Kaho' ohalahala just asked you about, so that he
could record it, have you submitted any written testimony on...on this this morning so that all
the Members may have that?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I will be happy to do that tomorrow. I, you know, I've...I've--it's just like this
Committee, you have been struggling with these ideas, you know. And...and, you know, I've
been following what you're doing and struggling with it, too. And I've talked with a few people
over the last few days and this is how it, you know, one person suggested that we, you know,
treat it like the tax thing. And I thought that there's the...there's maybe a good solution to have a
sliding scale. Identify the different users and not try to, you know, make the
community gardens any different than our, you know, large scale or industrial users. I think
that the...the water that they use is gonna be limiting expense anyway. And nobody wants to use
more water than they really need, hopefully. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you...you can submit us a copy of your written...
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MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I...I will do that tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I appreciate your suggestions that you testified to this
morning. Thank you.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yeah, I've...I've, you know, I really got up and kinda after sleeping on this
last night really you kind of...you know, suddenly things were kinda clarified for me and I just
wrote this down this morning. And it seemed to make sense.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, thank you. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla [sic]. Any other questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, John, the only other thing I would suggest, you know, and when you put down customary
rights, you know, you said Hawaiian Homes, make sure kuleana rights are very important.
We...we...it's an issue that sometimes gets kinda put on the back burner. Really should be an
issue that should be at the forefront.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I'm...I'm glad that you mentioned that. You're absolutely right. That
is...those kuleana lands and hui lands are specifically mentioned in the Hana Community Plan
and they...they should be in here. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I did wanna just comment briefly on WR-7 if I could.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, go ahead.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I just wanted to, you know, I don't get to say mahalo to people enough. And I
just wanted to say that mahalo to the U.S. Geological Survey which is a great organization, do
great work, I think. And taxpayer money well-spent. They...Bill Meyer, the former head of the
USGS Pacific Region was the expert witness for the Hana Community Association. Myself and
Parley Kanakaole in an important case in East Maui in 1989 and '90 and their...their expert work
became accepted science by both sides. And that was real important to...to getting the--you
know, people agreed what the baseline information was. And that was so important, you know,
that people lobby for their own interest. But for people to agree on the facts is so important and I
think that, you know, I would just compliment them for doing that. I think we should all look
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forward to more water modeling with the USGS in the future. I did talk with Dr. Gingerich at
one time about possibly...modeling some water in a couple of areas in the Hana District. That's
probably a long ways off but I just wanna say what a wonderful resource. And I'm gonna stick
around now.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . .(Chuckles). . . Okay. Thank you, John. Any questions for John at this point?
Seeing none -MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Mahalo.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --thank you very much. Okay, next testifier Michael Howden. And Michael
Howden is speaking on...on his behalf. And followed by James Fosbinder.
MR. HOWDEN: Thank you, Chairman Victorino, Members of the Committee. I'd like to comment on
both of these. The first one, WR-7, I...I...I mean actually I'm very much in agreement with
what John Blumer-Buell had to say. I think USGS is a often-overlooked resource of very, very
good science. And I would point out to the Committee their findings in previous years that the
Iao and Waihee Aquifers, the salinity in the aquifers has risen by over 20 feet in the last 20 to 25
years. And we seem to just keep on building as if none of this really matters. But if we lose
these aquifers which are so valuable to Maui County as a whole and especially to Central and
South Maui, I think we'll be in serious trouble. On the WR-1, defmition of agricultural
consumer I agree with John that I think it would more useful to delineate the different uses. I
think what we're focused on right now is a kind of Farm Bureau definition of...of which really is
plantation and industrial agriculture and to some extent ranching. I think we really need to look
at the value of...of what really diversified agriculture can offer our communities in terms
of... food security. In Mr. Kushi's definition here, I would recommend that we change from
minimum growth annual income to a...a value, a comparable value of 5,000. And I would also
point out that I think nurseries are a very important part of the agricultural process, especially in
terms of sustainable agriculture. And somehow that...those should be worked in. Going back to
WR-1, if I might?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Go ahead.
MR. HOWDEN: I...I would really suggest a series of reservoirs. Carl has pointed out, our consultant,
has pointed out that, you know, 800 million is...is considerably more economic than 1 billion in
the Water Use and Development Plan for Central and South. I would recommend a series of 300
million gallon reservoirs strategically...placed throughout the district. And that also that we
really need to look at a treatment plant closer to Waihee Stream where we don't have the
excessive cost of...of transporting that water. And that's pretty much the points I wanted to
make Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Howden. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Chair, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you. Michael, I'm intrigued with the idea of
the...the distribution of reservoirs, you know, three versus one. Are there other benefits to that
other than location?
MR. HOWDEN: I think, well, they...they...they give a certain security, a guarantee of water to more
diversified districts rather than one central one. Let's say there's an earthquake and we lose the
big, big one and there...there are no backups. I think it's better to--and I think it...it's more
viable the way HC&S and Maui Land and Pine, you know, all of Upcountry and Central Maui
are dotted with substantial reservoirs which I...I hope eventually would be part of the County
system. But I think that we would do better to build more moderate-sized reservoirs so that we
can guarantee that we serve individual districts.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: What about the cost comparison?
MR. HOWDEN: The cost--Carl, of course, would be better to speak on that. But on...on his charts in
the Water Use and Development Plan for Central and South, 300 million and...to 800 million
seemed to make sense. It was not economic to move to 1 billion, even though I think Mr. Duey's
idea is a grand idea. But I think we would do better to be slightly more moderate. And also
I...John brought up agricultural rates. On the board, we tried to keep these rates tied to the cost
of delivering that water. And because we felt that even agriculture as foundational it is...as it is
to our security on this island, to our livelihoods, it should carry a certain weight. I believe our
agricultural rates are actually somewhat higher than Hawaiian Homes on Molokai and also
agricultural rates on the Big Island. Of course, I stand to be corrected if Jeff has stuff on that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. We...we will take a look at that.
MR. HOWDEN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Other questions for the testifiers? Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Howden.
MR. HOWDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Next testifier is Mr. James Fosbinder and he'll speak on his behalf and on behalf
of his organization and clients. Next testifier, Rosemary Robbins.
MR. FOSBINDER: Hello.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning.
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MR. FOSBINDER: Good morning. Maui County essentially is one giant desalinization plant. The sun
heats the ocean, the water is evaporated, it condenses against the West Maui Mountains and
against Haleakala and we have desalinated water. We have a vast amount of desalinated water
available on Maui. Much of it is being wasted obviously. Right now the people who are paying
the highest price for the mismanagement and abuse of the Water Department's powers are the
roughly 1,500 people on the waitlist for water meters Upcountry. This is a problem that could've
been solved within a year. I grew up in Waukesha, Wisconsin. A hundred years ago, the World's
Fair was in Chicago. Waukesha was famous for its water. In one year they put up a pipeline that
stretched 140 miles from Waukesha, Wisconsin to Chicago for the great World Fair. The talk
about infrastructure being handled properly, we're not even in the ballpark here. And I think the
reason is because we have so much water. The reality is that there's plenty of water for every
house that could be built under the permits that have already been issued under the subdivisions
that have already been created Upcountry. The problem is there's a lot of resistance to that
development. But the way that it's being handled is resulting in a situation where the County
faces a liability potentially in the billions of dollars. You cannot take what--roughly, as I
understand it, there are at least three households per person on the water list potentially under the
existing permits. These people have been paying property taxes based on the assumption that
they had water available to them. Water could be made available to them. Condemning a
modest portion of the water that A&B wastes would result in vastly more water than is needed
for every single potential Upcountry house. But there's resistance to those Upcountry homes.
But you can't do it. You can't keep keeping these people from building homes without having it
become a takings at some point. And multiply the number of houses times the appraised value
by the County for the land up there and you are talking about billions of dollars, not $7 million
like Montana Beach. Billions of dollars. This can bankrupt the County of Maui. I love it here. I
live here with my family and my children who are born here. I do not want to destroy Maui
County's parks and other facilities that are now owned. But this has happened around the
country. There's a...there's a county in Michigan where literally the parks had to be given to
developers, because their rights had been violated so (inaudible). This is a problem that you
have to solve. This can't keep going the way it is. That's really all I have to say.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Fosbinder. And I appreciate your...your testimony.
Unfortunately, it really...I don't know where it fits in today's agenda other than maybe we're
talking about groundwater availability.
MR. FOSBINDER: Well...
CHAIR VICTORINO: So...
MR. FOSBINDER: Let me take a minute for that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. FOSBINDER: Because groundwater is surface water. Surface water is groundwater.
- 14 -
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, you can make that argument every which way and you...you make good
points and I...I'm not in the point of arguing with anyone as far as what's available and who
does what.
MR. FOSBINDER: Well, I just...
CHAIR VICTORINO: I agree with you in one point. There's a lot of water. I'm not...there's no
question about that, and maybe we've done a poor job in getting the water to where it needs to
be. So those issues are something this Committee and others have, and continues to address.
MR. FOSBINDER: Well, the point is that looking at just groundwater or looking at just surface water is
silly, because groundwater can become surface water, surface water can become groundwater.
Water should be looked at in its entirety.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. FOSBINDER: All...
CHAIR VICTORINO: But today's report is really from the USGS on that issue, Mr. Fosbinder.
MR. FOSBINDER: I understand. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So thank you. I appreciate that. I see no questions for the testifier. Okay,
moving right along. Rosemary Robbins...and followed by Walter Kamanu [sic]. And Rosemary
is speaking on her behalf and her organization. Good morning, Rosemary.
MS. ROBBINS: Good morning. Good morning, Mike. Good morning, everybody. I appreciate the
opportunity to be here. I am an educator. My master's is in education. I taught two days this
past week, one up in Kula and one down at Waihee Elementary. And I always go in armed with
opportunity for our youth in our DOE to be able to learn more right where they are in the
classroom. And one of the things that I worked with last week was Water Wise Kids. I don't
know if you've seen that. It's a publication that you put out and it's great. And over at the
Hokama Building I've been able, over the years, to pick up those booklets. They're extremely
well-done and to get them into our children's hands and because of the learning that I've been
able to absorb by being here, I'd like to think that that's going around, coming around. Thank
you for the opportunities to have those materials. Some of them are put out by us, at least that's
the name, is the Maui County Department of Water. In some cases they're saying from the
American Waterworks Association. At any rate, it's good stuff. I want you to know that that is
getting out to our kids. So...I also want to just give a word of thanks to the people at the
Wastewater Division--I guess would be the right word there. I went over and went through some
materials that they had. They were very kind in offering me the materials, answering any
questions that I had. And the learning that came from that was also very helpful, but one of the
points that came from that was that so much of what happens these days is happening as a result
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of consent decrees which are happening as a result of lawsuits. Lawsuits is such an expensive
approach to getting stuff done. And...and I, for one, have been out there for years saying, please
don't let it get to that stage. So I'm totally behind whatever it is that we can do to be able to
avoid the lawsuits and to just move forward. Well, one of the ways that I think would be helpful
to do that is to make sure that we don't just rely on compliance as our goal for operation...goals
for operation. It's insufficient. It needs to be in there, but it's only part of the story. We truly
need to be focusing on excellence. We need to be learning from what's happening here in
Hawaii over history. I began teaching on Windward Oahu in 1962. I was in a rural area. I
learned a lot. I came from an area where I had no background in this. So this teacher was...has
been learning all these years and I thank everybody for that input. But we need to really be
zeroing in on excellence as our goal. And that excellence I see is coming from a combination of
ingredients. Learning from the past in Hawaii. Folks who have been here longer than my years,
going back, have a history. And some of that is accurate and some of that is mixed in with lore.
We need to sift, get what's gonna help us moving forward on that. We also need to make sure
that we are learning from other societies who have lived through the problems that we're going
through now. You know, Hawaii did not invent indoor plumbing or the wheel or a number of
other things but we jumped on those bandwagons wisely. We need to be able to have a combined
crew of people who are working with the factual history from Hawaii past with the factual
history from other than Hawaii past. And we need to be able to make sure that our goals are
beyond mere compliance So hurray for the excellence. Thank you for that. Thank you for
energizing for that. Mike, thank you for coming up to Makawao the other night. You heard a lot
of people who don't come down here to testify. They all seem to think you bite, all right. But,
true?
CHAIR VICTORINO: No.
MS. ROBBINS: No. But...but that's the thought. I don't go down, all right. But when I speak, I am
speaking for other people and that, so thanks a lot.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Rosemary. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, Walter Kamanu [sic], followed by--and he'll be speaking on his behalf--followed by
Sherman DePonte.
MR. KANAMU: Aloha kakou.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. KANAMU: I speaking on groundwater. However, last year I made a discovery when I was in the
island of Oahu. I was staying in Kalihi at my in-laws house and something told me to go to
Punchbowl Crater to visit my aunty who died a year before that. And I decided to walk from
Kalihi to Punchbowl. And during my walk I passed several streams. The first one was Kalihi
Stream and the water was flowing and had fishes, you know, and had kids playing in the stream.
I passed Liliha Stream and I sat on the bridge and I watched as the kids were playing in the
water. And I looked for the fish. Then I passed Nuuanu Stream and the same thing, I look, wow!
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And I passed Pauoa Stream on my way to Diamond Head Crater. And even on that day I went
down to buy manapua in Chinatown. And in River Street had Chinese people with their fishing
poles catching fish. There was a phrase that I remember a long time ago. Maybe some of you
might remember it. It was Maui no ka oi. Anybody remember that? Maui no ka oi. Okay,
about 15 years ago--there's a solution to this now. I...my heart was broken because I'm in
Honolulu where the population is ten times as much as Maui and yet they get water flowing in all
their streams and we don't, okay? So my heart was broken. You might say this is not
groundwater related to this, but I say it is. There's a solution. About 15 years ago when
Mayor Alan Arakawa was in office, I wrote a proposal to him because I have a 501c(3) which is
called LIFE. It stands for Living Indigenous Forest Eco-Systems. Two cousins and I, we got
together and we formed this organization. And the organization, the mission of it was to
perpetuate and preserve the native...forest and to regenerate the groundwater, you know,
recharge the groundwater. And I never even got one answer, you know. I was asking for the
County's support. I believe that's the solution that, you know, we're always looking where we
going get the water. Or, who owns the water? What about creating more water, planting forests?
I've planted thousands of trees on Maui and also on Kahoolawe. I planted thousands and
thousands. You know, can we...look...can we look towards a solution? Can we be Maui no ka
oi? Or is it just a phrase that is in the past and doesn't have any future? Mahalo.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Kamanu [sic]. Let me ask you this question. Would it be
possible to forward that...that proposal to me?
MR. KANAMU: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR VICTORINO: And I will pass it out to the rest of the Members. Just...as information if you
don't mind so that--you know, I...I...son y, 15 years ago I wasn't here. I mean not here in this
position. I mean I've lived here. But I would be very interested to look that over and I think
some of the Members would like to see it also if that's possible.
-

MR. KANAMU: I...I'll try to look for it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, please. You know, I would appreciate it. Or...or...
MR. KANAMU: Does the County keep records of that kind of stuff? People...
CHAIR VICTORINO: I can go look back. I mean 15 years ago might be a while, but I can try. But if
you have a copy, it would be easiest but whichever way. I go...I will ask.
MR. KANAMU: Okay, I'll try.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, please. And I'll try to check back in the archives too. You know, I'd
appreciate that. Questions for the testifier? Yes, Mr. Medeiros.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Kamanu [sic], aloha and thank you for
being here this morning.
MR. KANAMU: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Are you familiar with the Leeward Haleakala Reforestation
project?
MR. KANAMU: I'm part of that. I'm-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. KANAMU: --one of the...the--it's Haleakala Ranch, Ulupalakua Ranch, Kaonoulu Ranch, Nu'u
Mauka Ranch and Kaupo Ranch. And LIFE, Living Indigenous Forest Eco-Systems, is one of
the partners in that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So you...you're working with Dr. Art Medeiros on that?
MR. KANAMU: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I think that's a great project and...and...and it, you know,
brings attention to your...your efforts that, yeah, if we can create more rain and water
that...that's part of a good solution-MR. KANAMU: Yeah, and...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --instead of trying to see how we goin' divide up the water.
MR. KANAMU: And, you know, lot of the...the reason why we lost all of the groundwater because of
plantation, you know, cutting down the forest because of greed. At one time there were, you
know, closed canopy forests. It was iliahi, sandalwood-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. KANAMU: --koa and, you know, for the greed of money the forest was all cut down and sold.
Lumber was sold. And now this is what we got. And now the solution is, I think, to bring back
the forest so that we have more fog drip precipitation, we have more groundwater recharge, you
know.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. KANAMU: So that's just my manao.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Thank...thank you for your efforts in...in doing that. We
appreciate it. Thank you for your testimony.
MR. KANAMU: Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Any other questions for the...for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
Mr. Kamanu [sic]. Next testifier is Mr. Sherman DePonte, and he's testifying on his behalf. And
then we have Mr. Warren Watanabe.
MR. DePONTE: Good morning, Council Members.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning.
MR. DePONTE: Morning. Sherman DePonte. I'm on the WR-1(1) for the rules, agriculture. In any
case, my biggest beef on this thing is usually the...is on the gentleman estates that we see
coming up in the name of agriculture. I like the new... definition that you guys have here. But
one of the things that I gave some of the Council Members before was some kind of rule or law
that can...can be put in place that in a gentleman estate in that agricultural land that just got
subdivided and became gentleman estates, they can still have piggeries, have chicken farms, and
have agriculture which is defined by this agriculture here, because a lot of 'em have the
covenants that say "no can do." And they get stopped or they get thrown out. I had a friend
on...what was Kula Nani above that that neighbors gave 'em so much heat because of the
covenants said his cows was making little bit too much noise when he cleared the pasture and he
was raising his cattle. So that...that was...that was one of the...that is one of the things that I see
that is a major problem here on the gentleman estates that is going up all over. If we can put a
law or something in there that takes care of that, that would be great.
The other thing is with agriculture some of these large...large lots in the name of agriculture get
subdivided and then instead of being that inch-and-a-half or two-inch meters or three-inch
meters, whatever that...the meter sizes is, it gets traded down to like 13 meters or 15 meters
because they're equivalent to that amount of water. And then all of a sudden we have houses in
that places instead of agriculture that they're...we're talking about. The other thing is the dollar
value. Some of these farmers are hurting. A lot of our Kula farmers, lot of...lot of the farmers
are hurting and in the name of agriculture, again, we need...we need subsidies or something to
help them out and...and work with them 'cause they're the little guys. And it...and it comes
down to, let's see, we're helping the big guys that has 5 million or 50 million loss on...on
agriculture because their stocks didn't just quite make it? I think we need to look seriously at the
people over here, us, the homegrown, you know, Upcountry people, all over the place, when
these subdivisions go up and really focus in on agriculture, agriculture that would take care of us
over here on the island in case there's a disaster which we had a good warning this weekend.
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In any case, the next thing is water waste on the large companies. I'm here testifying on myself,
but as a professional land surveyor I travel and I do a lot of things all over the islands. I get to
see the backs of the islands. And I get to see the backs of people's properties. I get to see the
backs of large properties. And some of the times I see water that is wasted, running down. And
I...and I have pictures that show it. So it's now baloney here. Water's getting wasted, a lot of it
is getting wasted on the large plantations that is asking you for water, to take the water from the
Keanae farmer. We can let a little bit of water go down that stream. And my suggestion, again,
was pump that water. When there's...when there's a lot of water coming through, pump that
water. Take that water out of that stream. But when there's no...not hardly no water, make sure
you got the reservoirs on this side to save it. Mr. Howden said it, we need more reservoirs.
Definitely, that's the clear vision, more reservoirs. We had it on every single house in Kula
before. Where are they? It should be part of the code. Get us...get us a tank, a 30--what,
6,000-gallon tank or a 8,000-gallon tank. How much is it...it gonna cost for a new house? But
it'll give us...reserves. We need it. We're asking the Council again. As a...as a member again
as I watched the other come here, we're begging you for help. We need it, especially in
this...economic times. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Dudley. I appreciate that. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much. And our last testifier who has signed up for today is
Mr. Warren Watanabe and he'll be speaking on behalf of the Maui County Farm Bureau. He is
their Executive Director. Mr. Watanabe.
MR. WATANABE: Thank you, Chair Victorino, Members of the Committee. I wasn't planning to
testify today because I think you all...already know what Farm Bureau's position has been on
this issue. I was looking over the proposed, I guess, definition being on the agenda for today.
We have concerns because of...it doesn't mention crops like flowers and those kinds of
landscape crops. And I understand that you will try to change it, amend it to just say
"commercial production" or "commercial agriculture" and Farm Bureau is okay with that. On
the income level, again, you know, we did throw out a suggestion. But I think for the County, I
think what you need to determine is what kind of level--and again it was just a...point of
discussion, that we threw out there--to distinguish between, you know, commercial producers
and, again, the issue of the gentleman estates. So we feel that the level must be high enough to
make that separation. And I also would like to comment on...on the proposed definition that the
ag group came up with. There was a suggestion of an ag board and I will...reiterate that we do
support that. I think it's...it will be good if the industry...themselves help determine who
qualifies for the ag water rates. Regarding some previous testifier about a suggestion of a tiered
or difference...differentiation between the different industries, I have some concerns on that
because it may create friction within the industry by separating out like that. I mean it may be
for consideration but that is my concern of...of...of creating friction. On the ag rates we
currently pay a dollar. I...I think for the industry it may be reaching a critical point. I don't
know if you...the issue is that Maui is the only island that not have...that does not have a State
irrigation system. And we are, as you know, we are working on that issue. But I believe the
State current fee is around 36 cents. So it'll put our farmers, if you increase the rate, at a
greater...real disadvantage with the rest of the State. And that's my comments. Thank you.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Before I open up for questions from the Committee, Warren, you
mentioned about you support a amount for the consumer, you know, the agriculture consumer.
And we've heard you showed a report that said $1,000. That was the national average.
MR. WATANABE: Right.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And then we heard a figure of $20,000. You know, we've heard different figures
and, again, for conversations, I'm the one that set it in the 5,000.
MR. WATANABE: Right.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Just to get some--what I call--starting point. What would be...what would you
consider a fair figure in that respect, just so that the Committee hears what you as the Farm
Bureau?
MR. WATANABE: I would say I was...you know, I would say the 20,000 would be a good place to
start. And, again, I think, you know, for the County--and I stated it, I think, yesterday, too, that,
and in previous meetings--that the commercial producers get some...whether it's tax, you know,
on your land or your water rates--we get some, for lack of a better word, a subsidy. But in return
it is to be an economic stimulus. And so in return the government should get something in
return. And I think that's what we...we're trying to say as commercial producers.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And the other...the other issue you brought up--and I...I wanted
clarification--you mentioned that the State has a rate of 36 cents-MR. WATANABE: Uh-huh.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --and we charge a dollar here and the dollar--as Mr. Howden had mentioned and
I was on the board when we set that rate--was strictly based upon the expenditure of... of a utility.
And the utility charge was basically what we're trying to say, okay, that's the only thing
that--which really hard for us to continue to eat, you know, to continue to subsidize, but we did
everything else. We...you know, we didn't charge anything else. Do you see the...the fairness
in our rate versus the State? And, again, the State is taking so long to get their system completed,
that makes me wonder when we're ever gonna see it. Five years, ten years? I mean I've heard
numbers from all over the board, but what do you think? The dollar we charge, do you feel it's
a... is a fair figure for... for what we have to pay as consumers?
MR. WATANABE: Well, I was a member of the rate study committee that threw out the...the rate
schedule. At the time I did have difficulties, you know, agreeing but I think, you know, in the
long run, you know, if we are to improve our water system, you know, we...we gotta pay for it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
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MR. WATANABE: And...and, again, it's...it's a matter of how much the community is willing to
subsidize agriculture.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. I'll open the floor up to questions for the...from the
Committee for the testifier. Mr. Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Warren, you said that you were
concerned for the...the idea that was presented about the...looking at a tier of users because you
said it would create friction. Can you elaborate on what you mean by that?
MR. WATANABE: Well, I think, you know, as an industry we...us--I mean, you know, we're a small
part of the...total population. And I don't wanna see where, say, a flower grower has a
preferential rate or maybe in a opposite...in a opposite way, a rancher has a...different rate
because we are...I consider us all agriculture. And, you know, it does...it's not gonna help the
industry if we have, you know, different factions.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. But at the same time you see yourself as a
separate faction. In fact, you made several...comments in the last couple hearings about how
commercial ag should be viewed as a separate entity. So you see yourself as separate and apart.
But now if you're looking at spreading that use for agriculture with other uses, you see that as
creating friction.
MR. WATANABE: Again, you know, you...you...you're making a determination what by...what crop a
farmer-rancher produces. And, again, you want all of 'em to succeed and if you...if you do that,
make, you know, separate tiers, again, it, you know the vegetable farmers are gonna say, oh, why
does the rancher get a lower rate...say for instance a lower rate. Why is he different from me?
Because, you know, to me we're all in it together. We all produce for...for the rest of the
community. So it, again, you know--I...I just feel it'll create some friction, I mean based on my
experience.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. WATANABE: For Farm Bureau, we try to bring everybody together.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay, but you've also separated and looked at
subsistence farming as not farming. You know, you don't want that to be considered agriculture.
So again, how do you reconcile that?
MR. WATANABE: Well, I think, again, we--I mean it's not that we're against it. It was just that I think
the commercial producers are the one that's gonna produce, I mean for the...so that, as we stated,
so that other people can be, you know, doctors, pursue other careers. And the fear I have is that
as our...the number of our farmers and ranchers decrease--and it is decreasing--we as...as a
County and a State and as a nation, we cannot provide. We'll be depending on foreign countries
for our products. And it's...that's the way it's gonna be. Do we want that?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA:
Well, currently it is under that condition.
Ninety...ninety percent of all the food we consume here in Hawaii is imported.
MR. WATANABE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And I think there's lots of room for us to reconsider
what agriculture means to us. And I would support and advocate the industry growing and
looking at as many opportunities to promote or support the agriculture. But that's why I'm
having a difficult time because I consider all of these different tiers as potential supporters to the
idea that agriculture is part of who we are.
MR. WATANABE: Well, the point...I think the point is, you know--as a testifier pointed out, you know,
ranching, diversified ag, vegetables, flowers, forestry--I mean that can be considered all
commercial... agriculture.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So the key here for you is whether it's
commercial or not?
MR. WATANABE: Well, I think the key is but if they're all commercial producers, but you're gonna
allow them to have separate water rates? And that's what my concern is. The...you're causing
friction within the commercial producers.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I...thank you for your clarification.
MR. WATANABE: I mean...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MR. WATANABE: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other questions for the testifier? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Watanabe, good morning.
MR. WATANABE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Can...can you more or less qualify or...the selection of 20,000?
MR. WATANABE: And, again, you know, it's not based on any, you know, study or whatever. I...the
thing I think you got...you need to look--based on my experience--our commercial producers
will have no trouble producing that amount.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So the...the 20,000 would...would be that defining line between
commercial ag versus non-commercial ag?
MR. WATANABE: Well, I think the issue has been--I mean correct me if I'm wrong--the issue of
whether the ag water rates should be for...who is it for? And, you know, and again, from my
understanding, part of the problem is we have, you know, gentleman estates that receive this.
And so the County needs to determine some...by some mechanism how you're gonna separate it
out if that's the goal.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Watanabe.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other questions or further clarification from the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Thank you, Warren.
MR. WATANABE: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Watanabe was the last testifier to sign up. I will give one opportunity for
anyone in the gallery who would like to sign up who hasn't testified to this point. Seeing no rush
to the podium, with no objections, I will close public testimony on both WR-7 and WR-1.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
CHAIR VICTORINO: You know this would be a good time right now before we...we get started with
the presentation itself to take a quick break for your personal needs. So we will stand in recess
until 10:20 and then we will start the presentation at that time. This...the Water Resource
Committee stands in recess till 10:20. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 10:10 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:21 a.m.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . . (gavel). . . The meeting of the Water Resource Committee will reconvene.

ITEM NO. 7

GROUNDWATER AVAILABILITY (C.C. No. 09-133)

CHAIR VICTORINO: At this time I will like to call upon--is it Mr. Gingerich or-MR. GINGERICH: Gordon will start.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, Gordon will start. Okay, where's Gordon? Oh, there he is. Mr. Tribble,
Mr. Gordon Tribble will start the presentation. And, again, Mr. Gingerich, I guess Dr. Gingerich,
you'll be assisting him also? Okay, very good. So if you would, Mr. Tribble, please proceed.
MR. TRIBBLE: Thank you...thank you, Council Chair Victorino. It's a...it's a pleasure to be here after
several years. I--can you hear me all right?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. TRIBBLE: Okay. I know your time is precious. I won't belabor things long. I just wanted to give
a little bit of context to the presentation that's about to follow. In 2003, we intro...we the U.S.
Geological Survey entered into an agreement with the Maui Department of Water to do a study
of the groundwater resources for the Central Maui Water System, principally the Iao and Waihee
Aquifer Systems. And you'll be seeing today the results of that study. I know it's been awhile in
coming. During the course of that study we worked very closely with the Water Department,
both Planning and Engineering Branches as well as the...the Manager and...and his staff. We
also worked closely with the Water Commission. I believe had a couple of intermediate or
interim briefings to this body as well as a few meetings with what we call our stakeholder
committee which was groups of interested water users and citizens in the area. So I'm not gonna
belabor this much. I just wanted to make you aware that the information you'll be seeing has
been drawn from two reports that had been published. They're on our web page. We can get
hard copies if anybody really wants some bedtime reading. They're...they're pretty technical
but the information's in there. And then also Council...Members have also taken liberty of
putting in your packet a...a recently published circular on groundwater that is a little bit lighter
in reading and has some of the general concepts so that hopefully Dr. Gingerich will keep things
simple. But if there are things you have any follow-up questions on, feel free to contact us. And
if there's any desire for any hard copies of these publications either from you or the Members
here, please let us know. We can get those to you as well. And I think with that, I'll turn it over
to Dr. Stephen Gingerich.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Dr. Gingerich, if you would like to start.
Note: Computer-generated presentation.

MR. GINGERICH: Okay. Good morning, everybody. I'm gonna go through and give a quick
summary of the project that we did in cooperation with the Water Department where basically we
did a study of the groundwater and developed a...a 3-D numerical model of the groundwater
system which we could use to help look into the future basically and... and help manage this
system in a more effective manner.
So this is...this is pretty much the area we're talking about. I think everyone in this room is
probably familiar over the...the past decade or two of the...the issue with the groundwater in the
Iao and Waihee area. It's the most productive area for domestic water on Maui. And there's
been issues over...over time.
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This is a plot of water levels. We have water levels going back to the mid-1940s here in a well in
the Wailuku area. And it's...just historically these water levels have declined from about 30 feet
above sea level down to about 10 feet of sea level in the recent past. So this obviously has
generated...generated concern by all that, you know, what...what's going on? We're depleting
our groundwater resource. So that's one of the issues. And the other issue, this is a plot from the
same...near the same area of the...the freshwater lens. This is from a deep-monitoring well that
we measure over time. And it shows depth going down, the bottom on the left here. It...it's not
working. So on the left we have depth below sea level. On the right we have time. So since
1985 we monitored this...this well, okay, depth here. And this is the kind of mid-point of the
transition zone. So this is freshwater above your two percent seawater. So that's kinda what you
drink up here. Basically the bottom line is this freshwater resource has been shrinking over time
from '85 to 2005 and on. And that, combined with the lowering water levels and...rising salinity
in the wells, you know, of course, leads us to think, you know, we're, you know, we need to look
at this and manage this system better. There seems to be, you know, we're gonna run out of
water eventually. So that's kinda where we came in to come up with a...a tool where we could
actually, you know, investigate this and kinda look into the future and see what's gonna happen.
So although the...the area of...of main with water withdrawals from the Iao and Waihee area, we
needed to look out further and go figure out groundwater recharge throughout the West Maui and
Central Maui area, because ultimately a lot of these areas are connected in a hydrologic sense.
You pump from one area, you could affect groundwater in another area. So we needed to go out
far enough in our study to make sure we included all areas of potential concern.
Just a brief geology lesson. Basically we have...this is West Maui volcano here. Haleakala
would be up here. And basically the geology is what controls the currents of groundwater in the
Iao area that makes it such a productive aquifer. Basically we have the lava flows here that are
very permeable. Water can flow in that freely. And West Maui, Haleakala in between, these are
sedimentary rock. Can you hear me? I'll keep this closer. Okay, so this...this brown area in
here represents rock of a very low permeability. It...it...it's basically almost like a groundwater
dam so this occurs in the Waihee-Iao area. So groundwater in this area will...will be impounded
behind this dam and...and flow to the ocean but will flow slower. That's what allowed
groundwater heads to build up to such high values, you know, as much as 30 feet above sea level
in the past. So we have two different types of water. We have what we call the high-level water
here. This is area of low-permeability volcanic dikes. It's like if you drive back into Iao Valley
there where we have the Iao Tunnel and Kepaniwai Well. This is tapping this high-level water.
And water that fills up the rocks in this area spills out and forms a base flow in the streams. And
then water that also flows out of this dike area comes into what we call our... our freshwater lens
or basal system. This is water levels only a few feet above sea level and it's in a either direct or
kind of a muted connection to the ocean. So this is the area where most of the groundwater is
withdrawn and that's the area that we modeled with our system.
So the questions that...that we've had with managing this system, you know, there's several of
those that we could address with this model. Are...are the current rates--of course, this started
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in...in 2003--but were those rates sustainable in the long term? If not, where would we go to get
more water? With the existing infrastructure, how can we redistribute pumpage to maybe be
more effective, get less salt water from some wells and be able to pump harder from other wells.
So how could we maximize the yield with the current system? And finally we are also ask...able
to look at the question, you know, when stream restoration happens, water's restored to the
streams. We know that some of that water will sink through the streambed and then eventually
become recharge. We wanted to look at how much of that recharge might happen and we...we
can use the model to answer all these questions.
So basically we...we had to look at how much water might be coming from this high-level water
and feeding our...our lower freshwater lens system. And once we estimated that, we needed to
use this historic data we had. We had data from the past, you know, 60, 70 years of water levels
and the salinity or the amount of seawater from the intrusion that we might have had.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Dr. Gingerich, I...I...I apologize for interrupting you. I'm gonna call for a
quick minute recess. Please do not move. We need to change your mic because they're getting
feedback downstairs and Akaku. So this Committee stands in recess for one minute.
. . .(gavel). . .
RECESS: 10:31 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:32 a.m.

CHAIR VICTORINO: . . . (gavel). . . The meeting of the Water Resource Committee, March 2 nd , is
reconvened. Go ahead, Dr. Gingerich. My apologies for that delay.
MR. GINGERICH: Okay, no problem. So we have the historic data that we've collected, you know,
over decades. And we also have information about monthly pumpage rates. So we had to figure
out how much the Water Department is pumping, how much other users were pumping, HC&S,
all the different wells around the...the area. So we had to get records of monthly pumping over
time. And, of course, it's time to put in a plug. That's why we need to always collect this...this
information. You know, you don't know sometimes when you're gonna need it. But when you
have to go back and do a historical retrospective of what's happened, you need to have this
hydrologic information so as we continue into the future it's important to keep track of, you
know, everybody's pumpage and continue to collect water levels and salinity over time. So
basically we collect that old data. We also did a...a study of recharge. So we looked at recharge
from 1926 up until the present and figured out how agriculture and rainfall changes have affected
recharge over the time. And also incorporated the...the changes in sea level over time because
that can actually--the...the freshwater lens system actually rides up and down on...on...on the
ocean water beneath it. So we had to look at that as well. And basically once we come up with a
model that could mimic all of this hydrologic information, then we can use it to go on to the
future and predict future events. But I won't spend too much time on the technical part but this
is basically a...a numerical model.
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So this is a...a computer-generated replica, I'd say, of the aquifer that includes properties
about...this is the geology of the Haleakala lavas, the West Maui lavas. This yellow would
indicate the...the low-permeability sediments that...that act as a cap rock. We've got valley fills
beneath Iao Valley and Waihee Valley and so on. Different geological units are represented in
this numerical model. So we know the properties of the rocks and then we have to figure out
how much water gets into those rocks. So these are some plots from our water budget report
showing changes in recharge to the groundwater system over time. Starting up here in--like
1926 to '79 was a period of relatively stable, kind of the same agriculture and sort of stable
rainfall. So that was kind of our longest period we looked at. And these green-blue areas
represent the highest recharge. So obviously you're gonna get the most recharge up in the
mountains where it's the wettest, rains the most. And also there's an area of the sugarcane
irrigation here back when they used to use the furrow irrigation, so a lot more water got into
the...the system. You can also see like here in the...the Pioneer Mill sugar and so on. And then
as we moved into time, we had periods of less rainfall and changing agriculture.
And I won't go through all these, but we skip up to the most recent period, 2000 to 2004. It was
a period of combined of very low rainfall starting at about 1998 and continuing basically until
now. We've had some of the lowest rainfall and also some of the lowest irrigation. There's no
more sugar here, a little bit of pineapple up here, a more efficient drip irrigation in Central Maui.
So basically we were able to determine, you know, how recharge has changed over time.
And...and that's important for the State. They set their sustainable yield values for the different
aquifers. And those original numbers were based on recharge kinda calculated for this period
here. And we've shown in some places almost a 40 percent decline in recharge. So the
sustainable yield numbers actually have been revised by the State based on some of these newer
findings that we have now. So that's one of the outcomes of this model already.
So along with--okay, we...we find historic data about water levels and...and pumpage. We find
out historic recharge and...and...these are just some plots of again of the groundwater withdraw
starting at about the early part of the 1900s, sugar cane withdraw and some heavy well pumpage
here. And this is just a couple snapshots through time, get more sugar cane withdrawal here,
Pioneer Mill here. In the '80s, we started having pumpage from the Iao and Waihee Aquifer for
domestic use. And about 2004, lot of the sugar cane pumpage is going here. These are more
domestic wells in Lahaina. A lot more heavier pumpage here in the Iao and Waihee areas. And,
you know, we get golf courses down here and stuff like that. So basically we have a record of
pumpage for every month from 1920--well, from 1902 up until the end of the model study in
2004.
So basically we take our groundwater model, pump all that information into it and then we have
to try to make it match historic data. So these are plots of different wells throughout
the...the...the Waikapu and Waihee-Iao area and where we've collected these information about
water levels over time. So you can see the declines in water levels in certain areas. And then we
take the model and we try to mimic that and these...this red line here is basically the...what the
model tells us the water levels did over time. So basically we spent many hours in front the
computer trying to get these red lines to match the black lines. This is what we came up with
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our...our--we call a calibrated model or a best-fit model. And...and basically when we feel we
can match what's done historically then we have confidence that the model can then go into the
future and we can predict what's going to happen. So this is kind of our...our best, you know,
this is our...our proof that the model is...is doing, you know, what we see in...in real life.
These are water levels. And this is a...a map from the model then showing...basically I took the
water...the water table surface from 1926, then I took it at the end of the model in 2006,
subtracted the two and what you get is a difference map. So this just shows where all the water
levels have declined from 1926 to 2006. So this is where most of the withdrawal has been from
and you get a lot less out here in the...the...the flank...the...the very permeable lavas in the
Central Maui and...and the Lahaina side. But here in the Iao Aquifer, that's where most of the
water was to begin with and, of course, that's where most of the water has declined, has occurred
over time.
And the other thing we can look at besides the water levels is, again, the salinity 'cause
that's...that's what controls if you can drink it or use it for agriculture. So, again, this is...this is
a plot from this deep-monitor well, the depth and through time here. So back since 1985 we
have measurements of kinda the...the freshwater in the system. This is kinda the zone of
two percent seawater which is kinda what about where you could drink and this is kinda 50
percent seawater. So half freshwater, half saltwater. This kinda tells us about the...the
hydrostatic or the hydrologic balance of the system. Then we...we have to also have our model
try and track that and match that. And that's a lot tougher to do and these green lines here kinda
show what the model says the freshwater lens has been doing over time. So from the '30s up
until about 1980 or so, there's very little increase or very little shrinking of the freshwater lens
`cause there wasn't much pumpage in the Iao area. But...in the mid-'80s when it...it started to
pick up and, you know, you started to get more of an increase, so this is showing the freshwater
lens is sinking. So this is kind of the proof that our model also mimics the...the
freshwater-saltwater conditions in the aquifer.
And then I've kinda prepared--if this is gonna work--a little animation of the model here and
basically what I'm gonna do...if it's gonna work. So basically what I'm hoping to do is show
how the...freshwater lens has changed over time. But I'm having trouble with memory here. I
don't wanna spend too much time. If it doesn't work, then we'll have to move on. Oh, here we
go. Okay, so basically this is...this is the model. The blue part is the freshwater lens and what
I'm gonna do is show you this animation just kinda to get you oriented here. I'm gonna rotate
the lens. This is...this is kinda like the 3-D part, you can...just to get you oriented we're gonna
turn and look from Lahaina in towards the...the...towards the system so...and then I'm gonna
carve out--this light blue is freshwater--carve that away. So basically you're gonna look into the
transition zone here. So this...this...this big doughnut hole here, that's the...the high level water
in the central part of the island that I didn't model. And you're looking in kind of into the back,
looking down...Iao Valley into the freshwater lens. And so these...these the...these areas here
like Waikapu Stream and Iao Stream. These red dots are the surface places where the
groundwater--the wells--are actually are, the Waikapu Wells and Waihee Wells. And you can
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look out into Central Maui. This is the kind of the...the freshwater lens beneath the sugar cane
fields.
Now what I'm gonna do is run this thing through time. And...and we can see how the
freshwater len...lens will shrink in a minute...up here. Okay, so I've got a plot along the bottom
here. This is time from 1926 up to 2004. So you can see this is pumpage increasing in Iao and
Waihee areas. And this red line here kinda indicates this is where we started in 1926 and you'll
watch as the freshwater lens...will shrink in this area. And you can see the difference from
where it started to where it has ended up. This is all output from the numerical model. So not
much happening in the early part of the century. Most of the activity is out here under the sugar
cane fields where there's a lot more pumping. Then we start to get into the '70s and '80s and
you'll see this start to rise more rapidly here. ...Okay, that's it. So basically this just is
kinda...kinda helps us visualize and gives you a good picture of, you know, how the freshwater
lens has...has decreased over time. . . (Pause). . .
All right, so all that previously was kinda to show how the model works and how it can match
what we've seen in the past. Now the real power of this model then is to go into the future and
look at, you know, how things are gonna react over time. So one of the first scenarios we looked
at was, well, let's take the rates that we're pumping at now, or at 2006, and put those in the
model and run those out for, you know, 30 years or 150 years and see, you know, is the
freshwater lens going to be maintained at those rates. So I took these 2006 rates here for the
different parts of the aquifers, plugged them into the model, ran it into the future. So what we
got here, here's the plot after 30 years. These...these dots represent the...the locations of the
pumping. And the size of the dot, the bigger the dot, the more pumping there is. And then the
color represents the...the salinity of the water that's coming out of that well. So for this
particular case here, after 30 years this is the...represents the Waikapu pumping center
here...turns pink. So for that scenario that means it starts to get into...the salinity gets into a rate
that's kinda questionable. It's...it's kind of right at the drinking water limit So that could be an
area of concern. But if you look further into the future what we consider like a sustainable rate,
you know, for...for all time as we pump on, this well turns red which means it's...it's above the
drinking water standards. And it's...it's...and it's not...it's not gonna produce water that you
would...you could drink, and then we get a pink well up here as well. So basically at this
particular well configuration and the pumping rates from 2006, the aquifer can't really sustain
that rate into the future.
So the next question is, well, what rates can it sustain? Or what well distribution could
it...sustain? So, and this...this next plot shows a possible distribution as a lot more sustainable.
So basically this came out from several meetings with the Water Department planners, the
engineers thinking out where potential well sites may be where it's possible to drill, how much
can I be able to pump. And with...with many iterations, we kinda came up with this more
distributed setup where we reduce pumping in any one of the current wells and spread it out.
And it's always kind of the best solution to a...an ocean island kind of pumping system, is to
spread out your pumping as much as possible and pump from the shallow, you know, top of the
freshwater lens rather than too deep.
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So this is a case where we've got more wells and much more pumpage out of the system and
there's only a few wells that it might turn a little bit pink in...in...after the 30-year scenario.
And, of course, we still get a little bit of pumpage in the pink well, that's Waikapu Well.
That...that's a problem of well depth. That well's drilled nearly 100 feet deeper than any of the
other wells. So that's kinda the first well that the freshwater . . . (inaudible). . . saltwater is gonna
hit, you know, as it gets...as it moves up in the system. So when we come to this question of
sustainable yield, it's not just a one solid number, you know, Iao Aquifer can support 20 million
gallons a day. It's a matter of how you have your wells designed to extract that water. So here's
a case...the previous case was about 16--let's see--it was about 21 million gallons a day, not
really sustainable. But this next case we upped the pumpage to 27 million gallons a day from
these more wells, spread out wells, and it's...it's at least as sustainable as the other rate. So it
shows that you need to look at the...the...the way the system is pumped, not just the amount of
water that's coming out but the distribution as well. So the model helps us look at all these
different distributions, so I went through that.
And then the last thing I looked at was the possibility of stream restoration and how that can
affect recharge to the groundwater system. So basically at the time we had some estimates of
stream flow loss. We...we measured the stream at different times when the flow was higher
getting pass the diversions. And we can measure the amount of stream water, like right
downstream of the diversion and then go down to the coast and measure it. And we
can...measure how much of that stream water has actually seeped through the streambed, and
eventually makes its way down to recharge the groundwater system. So we've got these...these
red marks are...indicate parts of the stream where we are to make these measurements. And
these are estimates of stream flow loss. And if you add 'em all up, it came out to be about
12 million gallons a day over the entire lengths of these streams. So what I can do is put that
water in the model and see how that affects the salinity and the water levels.
And one thing before I go further, I can point out that, you know, that 12 million gallons a day
doesn't all get right into the...the aquifer where you can utilize it, because, you know, like say
out here there's 2 million gallons a day out here in the Waikapu area. Well, that's...that's over
the cap rock or over Central Maui and that doesn't really...that's not really going to improve
pumpage up here in the Waikapu area. So the 12 million is kinda the max, but the model helps
us distribute where that might go and help the system.
So these are just some examples. Okay, this was the scenario three. This is the...with no
diversion. This was our...our pumping distribution that we felt best managed the system. This
is the, kind of--I don't know if you call it the worse case or best case--but this is the case where
all the stream flow would be restored and you'd get 12,000...12 million gallons a day seeping
through the streambed. You notice all the...all the pink and red wells turn white. So that
actually helps those wells be more sustainable at...at these rates. And this is even after 150
years. So this would be till basically the system is stabilized at a...at a sustainable rate. And I
also looked at, well, what if, you know, instead of 12 million it's only, you know, a third of that is
restored to the streams which contributes to the recharge. You know, you still get mostly white
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wells here so most...most of 'em are sustainable. You get a little bit of pink in a couple areas,
but even that 4 million gallons a day appears to improve the, you know, the...the well system
that you have in Iao and Waihee Aquifers.
And one more thing we are able to look at with this model, you know, the Water Department had
some ideas about maybe going further north past Waihee to drill wells or look further south in
the Maalaea area. We were able to use the model to show that it probably wouldn't be, you
know, the most economical way to go. Some of these, especially down in the Maalaea area,
these wells probably start out salty and if you started pumping them, they'd get even worse. So,
you know, we know it wouldn't be worth doing too much, you know, exploratory drilling down
here and the same way up here to the north. These...these wells are in very permeable lavas.
They don't have any of this sedimentary cap rock out here to...to let the water pile up behind it.
So they're in close connection to the ocean. So any pumping there would get you some saltwater
intrusion much quicker. So it was also felt that, you know, the...the expense of going and trying
to pipe and drill, you know, up at the rugged north coast area probably, the model shows is
probably not, you know, the way to go. So it's also invaluable in...in...in helping the Water
Department plan their future expansion in that direction.
So basically a summary of this. The model demonstrates that the current--current being 2006 at
the time--distribution of pumpage was not really sustainable into the future. But we can
redistribute the pumpage and that will be sustainable and have more water than might currently
be taking from the system now. So the model helps us also guide about decisions about where,
you know, where not to drill. Going far to the north might not be so good. Going too far south
towards Maalaea not so good as well. And one of the outcomes also for the...the Waikapu
Aquifer system to the south, I think the current sustainable yield is, I think, 2 million gallons a
day. And the model shows that there's probably more recharge there and with effective well
distribution, we can get more than 2 millions a day out of the Waikapu Aquifer. So eventually
if...if it goes up to maybe 3 to 4 million gallons a day, this model will help if we need...if we
need to go to the...the State Water Commission, you know, and get those sustainable yield
numbers changed. They have said, you know, they're willing to look at this and they...and they
might possibly go ahead and, you know, raise the sustainable yield so we can get more water
from that area.
So that study has been completed and since then we've been focusing our efforts on the Lahaina
district. So we've basically collected more water levels out there, salinity profiles, looked at the
recharge, we looked at stream recharge again. And we are in the process now of...we have a
model that's nearly calibrated and we're working with the Water Department and the other water
developers in that area to see what their future plans are. We're gonna plug those scenarios in
and be able to look into the future and see how the Lahaina district might fair with...with
planned and projected pumping.
And then fmally, one of the things that we're not quite ready to do yet but, you know,
they're...they're currently working on these climate change predictions, you know, with global
warming or whatever, and there seems to be a steady decrease in rainfall over time that we've
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seen. So we wanna plug that into the model and look at as...as global warming might happen
and we get changes in climate. Predictions seem to look at we're gonna get perhaps less rainfall
or maybe less frequent rainfall or less big storms. You know, there's a lot of different variations.
Once those come out we can plug those into the model and also predict into the future and look
at some of these possible worse-case scenarios.
And then finally, which probably further into the future, we might be able to combine this with
an economic model, maybe work with some of the planners and look at the cost of water both
with the groundwater and surface water. And you can maybe put, you know, monetary values on
pumping certain water and certain salinity and...and help even fine tune the...the management
further to...to make it not just look at the hydrology but the most effective, economical way
to...to get the water out of the system. So with that, I'll be happy to stop here and move up front
and take questions from anybody. And this...this is the cover of the report that's been published.
I believe Council Members have all got a copy and this is available online or if you contact us,
we can mail some copies to you as well. So thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Dr. Gingerich, what at this time we'll do is, we'll call for a
two-minute recess so we can raise the screen and Dr. Gingerich and Mr. Tribble can come up
front and we'll have a Q&A for about 15 minutes or so. And then we will then move on to our
next item. So this meeting is in recess... . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 10:54 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:56 a.m.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . .(gavel). . . The meeting of the March 2 nd , 2010 Water Resource Committee
meeting will reconvene. Members, just for expediency purposes, again, we did have an update
and this is what my plan was to give you an update. And this plan is also evolving. We're now
presently working on the West side or Lahaina side of the island to get...because they do work
hand in hand with the West Maui Mountains. But at this time, I will allow each Member one
question. And if you have no question, you wanna pass it on, that's fine so that we can move
into our next agenda item, because it's almost 11:00 and we've have had a very good day, a very
informative day but we need to move on. So at this time, I'll start with Chair Mateo and move
across...let each Member ask a question for both Mr. Tribble and Dr. Gingerich. Go ahead,
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Gentlemen, thank you. That was
rather alarming to see that there still is hope for this County as we continue to look at
opportunities of redistributing how pumping is actually done. In the models that you had done in
the 150-year projections, did the models also take into consideration the increase of our
population as well in terms of... of availability or sustainability?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Is it on?
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MR. TRIBBLE: Am I hot? Can you hear me?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, there you go.
MR. TRIBBLE: Okay. The...the...what we used in the models were pumpage rates that were supplied
by the...by the Water Department based on some of the engineering constraints that they had. So
the amount of water that you saw in total, I think, for the one scenario Dr. Gingerich presented
was on...was, I think, 27 million gallons per day. So then that information gets fed back to the
Water Department, their Planning staff and their...their folks say, you know, what kind of growth
projections are we gonna have? How are we gonna meet that? And if 27 is not enough, then do
we need to look at other sources or drill additional wells? So there's a lot of back and forth
iteration.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. In regards to the...restoration of the streams,
I...I...I note that 12 million gallons per day recharge would be the best. And then 4 million
gallons recharge would be the second one. And with the contested case that's going on right
now, I...I...I don't know, you know, what the decision is gonna be in regards to...restoring the
stream waters. But I look at 12 million gallons per day as recharge, you know, would
significantly increase the, I guess, the life of the water? And what was interesting when you
mentioned it, because the drip irrigation which is more efficient for the plantation, that it took
away the recharge that was happening...you know, from, I guess, 1920 something to the time
that they did drip irrigation. So should we go back to the way it was before?
MR. TRIBBLE: I don't...I don't think I can go there. That's a--you know, our...our role really is to
look at the consequences of different water allocation scenarios. We weren't trying to advocate
that stream flow should or shouldn't be restored. But in the course of doing this work, we
provide this information both to the County and to the State. And so as they weigh
the...the...the petition for steam flow restoration both from the recent case in East Maui, of
course, and then the upcoming decision that we're waiting for in Na Wai Eha, they can do that
understanding not only what the consequences are for the off-stream uses and the in-stream uses
but for the groundwater resources as well. So I'm...I'm afraid I'm dodging your question but
it's really--it's not appropriate for us to go there and try to make-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
MR. TRIBBLE: --recommendations about water use.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, that's good. Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You're welcome. Mr. Nishiki.
- 34 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 2, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Thank you. I was looking at your summary and your first bullet
says, model demonstrates that current distribution of pumpage not sustainable. Then I
was...the...the question I have is this. If that is so and then you give perhaps how we can go
about redistributing the well area and especially in Waikapu, my...my question still is, I don't
think that this is a good picture. I think it's a gloomy picture, Mr. Chairman.
And...and...and...and the question I have is, is the lens still thinning and the salinity levels
increasing? Is that something that--I think it's something that we should be concerned about, but
what has the recent study shown? And do we have also money to continue this monitoring? Is
that going to occur? Because without it, Mr. Chairman, we...we...we've got no other group of
scientists that are going to be doing this for us. So, and...and I know that's a lot of questions
but...
CHAIR VICTORINO: That was...that was more than one question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I know we need to get these people back again.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So...and...and...and so I'm gonna defer all the questions except what,
Mr. Tribble, you could answer 'cause when it comes to money issues and all that, that becomes
our end. I don't want you getting overly concerned. But if we...I guess to put it in a simple
paraphrase, if we don't make any changes and we continue on this track, the...the thinning of
lens will occur and maybe one day salinity? Mr. Tribble?
MR. TRIBBLE: Yes, yes, sir. That's...that's accurate. The lens is...is continuing to thin. It is...you
still have a lot of freshwater left. I...I hope that point came across that that interface between
fresh and the salt water is still several hundred feet down, so there is time to...to manage and
engineer a solution to the problem. It's not something that's gonna be happening in the next few
years. The Water Department is...is working on that and obviously using this information. And
that's...you know, the...the scenarios that are in this report were a...a selected few of several
hundred that were run because we'd run some, the Water Department would look at that and go,
well, that's great, but that'll never work with the engineers, or the planners would say that's cute
but that, you know, that won't fly. They'd give us solutions and we'd go, well, that won't work.
So...so what you see is a distillation and that...that kind of iteration can go on into the future as
we get a better handle. It is only a model. It is only our best representation that we have now.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And salinity level?
MR. TRIBBLE: The...the...in the...in the Waikapu monitoring well...Waiehu monitoring well.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Waihee.
MR. TRIBBLE: Thank you. Excuse me. The interface has continued to rise between six and seven feet
a year steadily as...as you saw. That's a...that's a very...it's something that's not gonna turn
around overnight.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, and...and...and...and...and I...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, Mr. Nishiki, I'm gonna stop you here because I think you've made your
point and then he's made his point. And I wanna give other Members an opportunity.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. All I'm saying is that-CHAIR VICTORINO: I understand what you're saying.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --it is cause for concern.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes. I'm not saying nothing to the contrary. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Your
concern has been noted. Thank you very much and we all are the same way. We feel the same
thing. Mr. Medeiros, please.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, gentlemen, for your
presentation and for the information. Seems like, you know, the important part that I look at it or
focus is trying to recharge the aquifers. And when we do that, certainly it improves the water to
the wells. So how would we be able to control recharging the aquifer but making...making it
attractive to have more wells because it becomes better? And how would we monitor that? And
because the State, I believe, allows...or...or is in charge of the permits for the wells. So the
question is, right, we wanna recharge the aquifers but how do we monitor the wells that will
draw from that aquifer, because we...we hear the analogy, you know, you got a bowl of water,
the more straws you put in, the quicker that water disappears.
MR. TRIBBLE: Sure. Let me...let me...let me try and capture that fairly quickly. The amount of
recharge is controlled by two things. First, the amount of rain and then how that rain is
distributed. And there was a comment in public testimony made earlier about the importance of
the watershed and watershed health. And without going into it, I think that some of the
comments made there were...were worth reflecting on. As far as monitoring the amount of
recharge, that is an ongoing process that we have in cooperation with Maui County, the Water
Commission and several other entities. We do look at both water levels in wells and the salinity
profile in that one--actually now there are two deep wells. Does that...does that answer your
question?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I...I think, like Member Nishiki, I have lots of questions but
thank you for that answer.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. You, in your presentation,
talked about some of the variables had to do with sea level changes. And so my question has to
do with the...the area of the climate change. We do anticipate that sea level will rise. In the
Pacific there are already places that are dealing with that. So in your modeling then, have you
and...have you used the sea level rise as...as part of the model itself so that we can see from an
external view if the ocean is rising, what now happens to...to the water?
MR. TRIBBLE: The short answer to that is we have not incorporated sea level rise into the model. It's
our belief that...that what...what will happen is that the whole aquifer will simply displace
upward. So that's...that's a bigger impact from the standpoint of coastlines and coastal
infrastructure, storm drains and things like that. Storm drains, harbors, coastal engineering.
My...my belief--and that's all I can tell you right now--my belief is if the biggest consequence
from climate change on water resources is gonna come through changes in water patterns that
affect the amount of recharge that we're seeing. And maybe if I get a chance to come back here
in a year or two, I'll have some information on that. Right now we are working very hard to take
the models that represent global climate change and zero them in on the Hawaiian Islands. And
it's a very vexing problem. We're working very closely with people from National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration and University of Hawaii on that, but we're not there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, thank you very much. And thank you for being here today
and for the information. I heard something that I wanted clarified. I heard somebody say, I think
it was you, that the aquifers are all connected. And I'd...I'd like clarification. Did you mean
only in a specific area or are they all connected?
MR. TRIBBLE: I think the easiest way to get at that is...is to think of the flow. Most of the rainfall
happens in the central mountain areas and...and what we're talking about really is West Maui.
So you have most of the rain in West Maui. It gets into that high level aquifer and from there
flows radially out. So it's...it's not reasonable to say that pumping in Lahaina is gonna affect the
water resources in Waikapu. But if you were to pump water from central...from the...from the
high-level aquifer, then that would affect the water resources downstream in either direction.
Does that...does that simplify things a little bit? It's...it's...almost think of it as a stream and
you've got most of the rainfall happening in the central part of the mountain and then flowing
out. So if you take from up at the source, that will affect other areas. But if you take from a
coastal area, it's not likely to affect a coastal area on the other side of the island.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. So essentially if...if you're talking about them all being
connected, it would be in...in the central area, more or less? The reason I'm asking this question
is we have a situation which we discussed yesterday about moving water from one area to
another. And I'm thinking, you know, will...will taking water in one aquifer affect another area?
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MR. GINGERICH: The potential is there. Of course, it depends on the specific aquifer. If
you...the...the recharge perhaps that's occurring in Central Maui in the sugar cane fields is
probably not gonna affect the...the pumping in Iao and...Waihee areas because of that very thick
sedimentary cap rock, you know. Over thousands of years maybe there'll...there could be an
affect but in our time frame, it's not a big deal. It depends on the rocks that separate. There's a
case where the...there's the Iao Aquifer and then the...Waihee Aquifer to the north. They're
subdivided by the State. They have a sustainable yield that's different for each. But we've seen
over time that pumping in the Iao Aquifer has lowered water levels in the Waihee Aquifer across
the river even before there was pumping in the Waihee Aquifer. So in that case, those aquifers
are connected and you can't really look at the sustainable yield of one without considering what's
happening in the other, because they're adjacent and they are connected. So in a case like that,
you know, they're connected in certain cases. Pumping, like you said, pumping from Waihee or
Iao is not gonna lower water levels in Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much for the clarification. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. And good morning, gentlemen. And thank
you, again, for a very informative presentation. You know, one of the disadvantages of going
last, everybody before you asked some very good questions.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . .(Laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But my...my question relates to, I guess, Page 4 of your presentation
showing the recharge based from, you know, the years 1925 up to 2004. And
Mr. Kaho`ohalahala asked a question related to climate change, global warming, et cetera, and
it's shown over time that there's less water being recharged in the aquifer. How...what
percentage of that is due to just generally pumping of the aquifer versus changing weather
patterns? I mean over time, I guess, there's been a range of...rainfall is, I guess, been estimated
from 30 to more than 350 inches. How much is...of this less recharge from the aquifer is related
from pumping versus changing weather patterns?
MR. GINGERICH: Basically, the two things that would affect the recharge basically are gonna be the
weather patterns, the rainfall and the...the land use for irrigation water. So pumping will not
affect this recharge map at all. You could pump out every bit of it and it's not gonna give you
more recharge or less recharge. So these...these maps are changing over time because of
changes in rainfall or changes in irrigation. It seems like for the whole area, especially the
central part of West Maui Mountains, that's all due to rainfall changes 'cause there was no
irrigation there in 1920s. There's no irrigation there now. So that's all...so the...the shrinking of
that inner part of West Maui is all due to just changes in climate or changes in rainfall. And, of
course, the problem going into the future, we don't know. If it's gonna...is it gonna look more
like this 1926 to '79 version of average, what we consider average, recharge or is it gonna look
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like this, you know, 2000 version where over the past 10 years we've had, you know, severely
reduced rainfall? That, we don't know yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. GINGERICH: At least we can use the model to plug in those different things and, you know, see a
worse-case scenario.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay, and you put a lot of stock into the...global warming
theories and climate changes as part of your studies?
MR. TRIBBLE: In a word, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Committee Members. And at this time I would like to thank Gordon
and...Tribble and Dr. Gingerich for being here today for this update. You guys all aware that this
is online and you can get additional information if you so choose to. If you have any specific
questions you want the Committee to look into, please feel free to forward it to me and I will
forward it to the USGS. Again, gentlemen, I'd like to thank you. And at this time I'll take a
two-minute recess while we switch over to our other panelists from the various departments. But
I have to-MS. WILLENBRINK: Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --do one more thing. Yes, I know, I know. I would like...without no further
action--or discussion, I should say--I'd like to entertain a motion to file this
Communication 09-133.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, thank you. It was moved by Chair Pontanilla and seconded by Member
Molina. Any other discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Chair. Discussion.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Do you see that we will not be utilizing any of the
information on further...subjects within the...the Committee itself?
CHAIR VICTORINO: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So that...you don't see any further discussion on...
CHAIR VICTORINO: I mean we--this will come back up and when they have their studies completed
in Lahaina, we will bring up a new agenda item for that. We will bring out the West Maui
studies to incorporate with this. And they're available for information at any time. We've called
them on before without this...subject matter. So the idea was to file this because it's been an
ongoing communication from '09 and so then that way in the future we can bring up a new
agenda item with other areas included...inclusive. That was my...my thought behind it, just to
move it on so that we can bring out other agenda items whether West Maui, East Maui, whatever,
all can be--oh, excuse me--incorporated.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay? Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, you know, I wish you wouldn't file this. I think
we need to ask the Water Department, what is occurring with their projects and... in lieu of the
concern of the...the pumping. There are some-CHAIR VICTORINO: Exactly. And...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --these decisions that are being made in regards to allowing this
direction that we're taking of...of allowing more water to be used while the lens and everything
else is being thinned...I think this...and...and...and the salt content is going up. I think we need
to ask the Water Department in lieu of this report what-CHAIR VICTORINO: I will make a new request from the...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --decisions are made. And so to file it and...and without...with...with
these people with this kind of information and not--you know, we paid for this and... and now
we're going to all of a sudden just file the study is to me not making use of this information
and...and...and perhaps the direction of where we should be going.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Eng, would you like to respond to that, please?
MR. ENG: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I will. Member Nishiki, just to alleviate some of your concerns. We do
use this report and the information that the USGS has...has come up with and concluded. I'll
give you an example is that, a lot of it is the management of the Iao Aquifer. That was probably
a few years ago one of our biggest concerns and how much we were pumping from it. Back in
July 2007, we were pumping about 17.6 million gallons per day from that aquifer. Currently
we're down to 14.1. So we are trying to do all we can to protect the resources. The other thing,
the recommendation shows that distributing pumping is the way to go, and we are doing that
currently. We are exploring the Waikapu Aquifer currently. And we also have plans still to do
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the replacement wells for the Shaft 33 Well. So all these things we are taking into consideration
and planning.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr.--yes, Mr. Molina. I mean Mr. Medeiros. Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I get all kinds names

(chuckle).. .

CHAIR VICTORINO: That's my second mistake for the day. Okay, I'm really ripping now. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .(Laughs). . . Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And I want to thank you,
Mr. Chairman, for bringing this item to the meeting because it's certainly very important. My
suggestion would be whatever...your decisions are made that whenever...the next time we have
an opportunity to have these scientists and experts here, that possibly you schedule just one item
so we would have liberal time to ask them questions while we have them here. And I...I...I
would, you know...ask your consideration on that. Mahalo.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. No, no problem. And I... and I... and I agree with that. Unfortunately,
because it's the close of our...our Water Resource Committee agendas until after Budget, I'm
trying to get the last two things done. And this was also, upon my recommendation, this wasn't
something that was on the radar. I just said, you know, this a good time for updates. And I will
also be putting in a new agenda item for a departmental report on all of the activities and what
the end results will be based upon this study, what the Department is now undertaking to make
corrections and whatever else, you know, as far--and then I'm also waiting to see what the Na
Wai Eha decision will be because that will also affect what happens, you know. So that...that
will be another area that once we put on a new agenda item, that will all be incorporated in that.
Mr. Pontanilla, you had a question?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. If and when you do bring up this subject again,
you know, I agree with Member Medeiros...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ...that it should be one subject only.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And I will...
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the other thing I'd like to just comment on. You know, thank you,
Director, for providing us that information. And I think going forward, when we review the
Central Maui Water Use Development Plans, certainly there are projects included in there that
show the future wells for Maui County--or for Central Maui at least. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And thank you, Mr. Pontanilla, for reminding me about that. That's another
aspect that will be coming up after we return from Budget Session, the Water Use and
Development Plan which will be all incorporating all of this, this research will all be part of that.
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This is a very important part of the...the...the plan. So without further discussion, all those in
favor of filing the communication... signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oppose?
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino, Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Kaho`ohalahala, Mateo, Medeiros, and Molina.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

None.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: Recommending FILING of communication.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And Mr. Tribble and Mr. Gingerich, I would like to thank you very
much for being here. And I will recess this meeting for two minutes while we get the others up
and let you folks depart. Thank you. Meeting in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 11:20 a.m.
RECONVENE: 11:22 a.m.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . .(gavel). . . The Water Resource Committee of March 2 nd , 2010 will
reconvene. And I wanna, again, thank you...thank those...those gentlemen from the USGS.
They brought us some valuable information.
ITEM NO. 1(1): WATER SUPPLY RULES (DEFINITION OF AGRICULTURAL CONSUMER)
(C.C. Nos. 05-46 and 06-228)

CHAIR VICTORINO: At this time we do have present from the departments, Mr. Clark Hashimoto
from the Mayor's Office, Agricultural Specialist from the Office of Economic Development;
Mr. Scott Teruya, Real Property Tax Administrator, Department of Finance We have
Mr. Eric Yamashige, Deputy Director of the Water Supply. We have Mr. Ed Kushi, Deputy
Corporation Counsel. And so these are four panelists and what we're going to do, if you may
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recall, that at our last meeting the Committee discussed definition of agricultural consumer with
the Department of Water Supply, the Department of Planning and the Real Property Tax Division
and the Office of Economic Development. Concerns were raised about the minimum gross
income required and what that amount should be. We have asked the Water Department and the
Real Property Tax Office to provide us some information today that may help you with that
determination of what the minimum gross income requirement should be. I want to stress that
the primary goal is to insert the definition into the County Water Code. So I do not... so I do not
want to entertain too many questions regarding real property tax. However, for the...puipose of
nailing down the definition, I asked Mr. Teruya to provide some basic information in this area.
So, Mr. Teruya, would you like to share anything at this time before I open up the floor to
questions?
MR. TERUYA: From the Real Property Tax Division, our discussions with the Water Department...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No. Try...try go...
CHAIR VICTORINO: I...I don't think you're on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ...turn the switch again on the top. Yeah, and push it towards.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Try go real close. (Tapping of the microphone) Yeah, you're on.
MR. TERUYA: Can you hear me?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, there you go. You gotta go real close.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: We can hear your voice, but it's not from the mic.
. . .(Laughter). . . Is there a volume control?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Is there volume control?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Can you just hold it in...in front of you, Mr. Teruya? Just--yeah, take it off that
stand.
MR. TERUYA: Can you hear me?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MR. TERUYA: It's...it's...I think the volume is low.
CHAIR VICTORINO: That's the best we can do right now.
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MR. TERUYA: As... as far as Real Property Tax, we don't have any... real comments about the
definition of agriculture. All we did was look at the State... State's determination of that
definition. And we're okay with the definition as a broad definition for agriculture.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Before we go on, I'd like to call down Mr. Hunt. He is in the room. Mr. Hunt,
would you like to join us down here, please? And Mr...Mr. Jeffrey Hunt is our Planning
Director. So he's present also. Okay, questions for Mr. Teruya or any of the panelists?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Really, I don't have any questions but sometime back Mr. Teruya
and his staff had gone out to various areas in regards to trying to, I...I...I guess, identify all of
the people that are currently on ag rates. And through his...through his Department, there are
significant numbers in regards to the numbers...number of letters that were sent out, numbers of
response and how many of those numbers--the ones that responded--claimed other than ag rates.
So I...I just wanna thank the Department for taking that initiative in trying to resolve some of
our issues here in Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Further questions for the panelists or Mr. Teruya?
Mr. Kaho `ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Scott, I know that we had asked
earlier when you were last here about that survey and then I thought that that might be helpful in
terms of us getting an assessment of what you came about with in terms of how you determined
what was an area used by a landowner for ag use and...and, I guess, some value on...on...on
that as well, you know. So...so did you get any...any closer to helping us in getting some idea
on what those numbers were?
MR. TERUYA: Yes. As far as from last year, one of the Division's objectives was to reevaluate our
agriculture program. We've sent out approximately 8,000 letters to approximately 5,800
properties that were receiving agricultural use or dedications, of which so far we have denied 473
properties and have...looking at a possible gain to net shares of in...incoming revenue of about
$511,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Five hundred...511,000? And...okay. You know,
that's...that's a one-lump sum, right? But I...I guess what we're trying to do and we're trying to
assess what the farm or the user is gonna be. How do we take that number and then get down to
an average use per...per-MR. TERUYA: Okay. What I can do so far is, what I can tell you is there's currently 5,800 people
receiving agriculture use, and the subsidy is $23.5 million.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Twenty-five...
MR. TERUYA: $23.5 million.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Point five million.
MR. TERUYA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So dividing that would give me some--okay.
Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Kaho`ohalahala. Other questions? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(Clears throat). . . Thank you very much. I'd like to follow up on
Member Kaho`ohalahala's question. Scott, you told us that you'd sent out 8,000 letters and so
far 473 have been denied. Any figure of how many you've confirmed and said, yeah, you are
ag?
MR. TERUYA: No, that's still ongoing. We're...we're...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I mean how far into this are we?
MR. TERUYA: Maybe the question is how much longer will it take to survey-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, that's fine.
MR. TERUYA: --those many homes? That is ongoing. That is always gonna be ongoing. It's almost
physically impossible for us to complete that in a fiscal year. We have just completed our
estimates for our 2010 assessment. So the dedication program of going out to all these properties
are, as we speak, and as probably continuing throughout the year till we hit the assessment year
next year. So it is ongoing process, not only this year, it may run into the following fiscal year as
well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, the reason I asked the question now, I think this is really exciting
news because if you denied 473 and found over half a million dollars, if we could do more of
`em, I mean if we could assess more of 'mu, who knows what the potential revenue is out there?
What would it take for us to have you do that... quicker? . . .(Laughs). . .
MR. TERUYA: . . . (chuckle). . . You know, we're...we're still...it's...it's a juggling act for the Real
Property Tax Division. As you know, we are troubled by a backlog of real property tax appeals.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. TERUYA: So that is a job of an appraiser to do. So it's...it's a balance between going out in the
field and doing inspections of these as well as our...our job to...to get through the appeals. Our
appeals are twice a month and they take time to prepare 'mu as well. So to answer your
question, I'm not sure if it's a...it's a temporary hire for people to go out there and physically
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inspect properties. Literally, you need people to do it, physically go out there and verify. And I
can't tell you whether I need staff all year-round or it would be through a program of temporary
hire for people to go out and physically inspect the properties.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, I think this is a very intriguing opportunity being that we're
looking for revenue enhancements this year--that, you know, the cost benefit of hiring somebody
to go out and do this work for us, if it's gonna yield this kind of result, might be something that
we definitely wanna think about. Do you think that's possible? Could...could hired help do this
or is it something that requires very special training like your people have?
MR. TERUYA: To physically go out there and...and look what we're...what we're looking for is we're
basically needing somebody to field-verify what is on the application. You know, it...it doesn't
take very much to...to go out there and physically just verify what's being submitted on the
form. So there is some general field training but not much more, not very intensive.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I'll keep this in my hip pocket when we get to
Budget. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Teruya, this morning we had testimony
from a gentleman, Mr. Blumer-Buell, suggesting a...a...a wide array of, I guess, tax categories
related to agriculture. And then we heard Mr. Watanabe from the Farm Bureau express some
concern about that creating potential conflict. Any thoughts on that from the...from the Real
Property Tax Division?
MR. TERUYA: Oh, I'm sorry I wasn't here to hear the testimony-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh.
MR. TERUYA: --of...of Mr. Buell [sic]. But any time we create categories and classifications, we
always get into the consideration of where is that line and how is it going to be implemented
throughout the real property tax system. It's almost like creating several layers of minimum tax,
you know. So any time you create more layers, you're gonna run into a little bit more obstacles.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. More...more...more time consuming and you're looking at
more, potentially more personnel to have to manage that?
MR. TERUYA: Yeah. I...I didn't really hear what is the proposal so-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MR. TERUYA: --it's hard for me to comment at this time.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: He had various categories proposed, a plantation rate, diversified
agriculture rate and sustainable education and so forth so...
MR. TERUYA: If...if you're gonna create different rates, I would almost say, like, diversified ag versus
ranching, you...you're just gonna have to create the criteria, yeah? And now I'm not sure if
you're gonna picking and choosing how...what is that rate between one versus the other.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
MR. TERUYA: That's...that's where if you guys are gonna do that, make sure you maintain or establish
what that rate will be because for...for me to entertain it, it'll be...be very hard to... to quantify.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Other questions from the Committee Members?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just in support of the Department. You know, I agree with
Member Baisa in regards to providing help to do some of these collections. We did hire two
temporary, limited-term employees, two of 'em. And the two employees help support people,
workers, in the Department in regards to delinquent taxes. And the latest figure I have is...was
almost like $2 million that we've collected just by hiring limited-term employees. And I believe
that if we're gonna collect money in regards to real property tax, we should do that. We should
take a look at what is required and support that. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And I...I look forward to bringing that up in Budget and Finance
Again, I wanna go back to what we're trying to do here, consumer for water rates. And, you
know, all of this is good. But I wanna keep our focus now. And that's all I'm asking. Kinda
keep on the focus on this and I agree. We would...Budget and Finance, I think this would be
time when we go into Budget to look at these alternatives. And...and I agree, Mr. Teruya, if you
need help and you can get more money for this County in a fair and equitable manner, hey, I'm
not against that either, you know. Other questions for the other departments that are present
also? Yes, Mr. Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Chair, if you can allow me. I...I just wanna clarify with
Mr. Teruya and the reason...
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, no more...no more questions about...real property. I'd like to...move on to
other departments 'cause they're here too and I've got to give them an opportunity.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Well, my point is that if he is assessing these at...at ag
rates, meaning that these are people that are contributing to a revenue that's coming within into
the County at $23 million is what he's saying, then it would stand to reason that if they're
contributing to that revenue stream, then should we not be giving them consideration in looking
at this ag rate?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, I'm looking only at water.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: For...well...
CHAIR VICTORINO: I'm only looking at water, Mr. Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: For water-CHAIR VICTORINO: Not at...not at real property. And I'm not going to venture-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I know.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --into that area. See, again, I brought these people for clarification purposes. If
you want to talk real property, then we go to Budget and Finance and we can--and I've said that
earlier--and this can be discussed. I...I'm trying to keep the focus on water, okay? And...this is
what we're trying to do, for the purpose of water rates as I stated earlier. And now we go into
real property and others, I don't want to cross too many boundaries because then it's not part of
our agenda as far as real property, okay? So I hope I'm making myself clear. I'm not trying to
cut you off. I'm not trying to stop you from discussing the matter. But this is not the forum to
discuss the matter. It is with...we're dealing with agricultural consumer for water rates, okay?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I understand and that's...I see it connected. And that's
why I wanna...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Unfortunately, I think we're going over the connection so that's why I'm kinda
saying no, because I believe we need to focus on that, not on real property. Real property, I will
believe, during Budget Session we will have ample opportunity to discuss this matter.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. I'll make a statement, then I'll ask the question.
One is, my understanding with...from the Water Department is that in order to get an ag water
rate, you need to be on ag land?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. ...Yamashige.
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MR. YAMASHIGE: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I cannot hear.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Go close. We gotta go real close and talk up.
MR. YAMASHIGE: I'm not sure that this thing is really working.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: They usually aren't.
MR. YAMASHIGE: In...in our old rules--and Mr. Kushi pointed out...pointed this out to me
recently--in our old rules we did require that lands or the lands that agriculture rates are extended
to had to be on Agricultural zoned or agricultural...or State-designated Agriculture. In Chapter
14.10 of the Maui County Code...that was eliminated or that was blacked out. That's not
necessarily what we want, but that's...that's where...where it is right now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: May I follow up? So-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, you may.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --so what is the test then? How do you get ag rates? What do you have
to be in order to get these ag water rates?
MR. YAMASHIGE: Okay, that is identified in Chapter 14.10.010 Water Service Rates, subsection B.
And if I can, I'll...I'll just read it. Each consumer requesting an...agricultural rate for water
service shall submit an annual written application and supply an authorization for the
Department to obtain a copy of the State's Excise Tax Form G-45 or the Federal Income Revenue
Services Schedule "F" or other Federal Internal Revenue forms showing the consumer's farm
income. Existing lands with agricultural rates shall continue with that agricultural rate until the
farm income does not qualify for ag rates. In...in effect, it's the tax forms that justify that you
are doing agricultural operations.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that is the only requirement?
MR. YAMASHIGE: Oh, that you are actually doing ag. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And...and you confirm that by...by a visit?
MR. YAMASHIGE: We do on occasion. You know, we have 725, according to that-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
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MR. YAMASHIGE: --form table that we left out. So we're not able to go and check every one of them.
But we do go and inspect some of them randomly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you give us an idea of how many you actually get to see?
MR. YAMASHIGE: I'm not...I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not even a wild guess?
MR. YAMASHIGE: Not even a SWAG
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, so much for that area. Let's go to this sheet that you gave
us which we had talked about last time. Does...do you have it?
MR. YAMASHIGE: Yes, I do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Thank you very much for providing this information. I think this
is really good information. I'm particularly interested in the total amount that we say we
subsidize. And it shows two...$2,790,793 agricultural subsidy. And I notice that the largest
amount is in the over 2 million gallon category. Who are those people? Are those essentially the
big commercial companies like HC&S, Maui Land? Who are these folks?
MR. YAMASHIGE: I did not inquire on who these customers were. And certainly the...the breakdown
of consumption was...there was a little bit of thought to it, but it's not very thoughtful. That the
only rate that we wanted to really show is that 0 to 30,000 gallons for the two-month period,
because those people get no benefit of having that agricultural rate.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
MR. YAMASHIGE: The rest of 'em, you know, we just picked some general areas to...to consider...to
see.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, let me tell you why I was interested in this. You know, we've been
deciding or talking about here and we'll decide eventually on how...what kind of rate, who's an
ag consumer and what kind of people qualify for a... some kind of a rate reduction. And because
of the current situation that we're in right now, the socio-economic situation we're in right now,
and the emphasis on sustainability increasing, backyard farming and all...all of that emphasis
that...we're, you know, putting on it right now, I'm trying to figure out if we were to afford some
kind, not the regular reduced rates we use for commercial agriculture, but offer some kind of
incentive to the, you know, lower consumer, the backyard farmer, you know, what that would be.
But it's very...revealing to see that unless you're using in excess of that 30,000...that...that
30,000 in the two-month billing period, you get no benefit. And if you get up past the 50,000,
that's where it begins to really be significant. And, you know, most backyard people--you know,
we're...we're backyard farmers but we don't use...that much water per day. You know, the first
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tier uses up to 490 gallons a day. And I think people Upcountry are very, very sensitive to water.
And I think the majority of the people don't even spend that, don't even use that 'cause, you
know, we're very careful about how we spend water. So even if we were backyard farmers, we
wouldn't use all that much water, so maybe it's not a consideration that we should, you know, try
and figure out even though, you know, I did wanna somehow recognize that we have this
emphasis now on sustainability and backyard farming. So I didn't wanna cut them out entirely.
But I do understand from listening to Mr. Watanabe that he would like to see the emphasis on the
commercial farmers and the people that, you know, feed the masses. So that was why I was
asking the question. Any comments?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Yamashige.
MR. YAMASHIGE: Thank you. I...I totally agree. 490 gallons a day for domestic use in the
household is an awful lot. And you can certainly irrigate--I forget what you call--subsistence
farming or whatever you're gonna do for your own household, you know, within 500 gallons a
day. So I agree. There's...there's no need to set them aside and try to give them more.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. That was why I wanted this information, was to
try to figure that out and see should we, you know, do something to especially help. But it seems
like it's doable within the average household use. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You're welcome. Other questions for the various departments that are here
today?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Question.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. And Mr. Chairman, we're working off of the
definition that was, I guess, attached to the October 29 th letter from Mr. Kushi--am... am I
correct- justfor today's purposes?
CHAIR VICTORINO: I think so, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. Then that was the $5,000-CHAIR VICTORINO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --proposal that you had made, yeah?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I'll just throw it out to the...to any of our three...panelists here
today. What is the, I guess...are there any unintended consequences if we change...we establish
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this definition? If we don't establish this definition versus changing it, what...what...what are
the benefits or unintended consequences that...that we face if we're looking at the
five...establishing a definition with the $5,000, I guess, threshold? Any...any comments? I'll
just leave up to Mr. Hashimoto, Mr. Teruya or Mr. Yamashige.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, stop when anybody wants to take the question now.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Anyone wanna jump in? Yeah.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Yamashige.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sounds like a...a law firm up there, you know. . . .(Laughter). . .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR VICTORINO: Watch out.
MR. YAMASHIGE: Yeah. Okay, I'm gonna throw this out and you...you guys have a really tough job
trying to define agricultural consumer. You know, we met--the...the Director Hunt, Real
Property Tax and Water Department--we've met a couple of times. Clark was able to get Warren
to come and give us his...his thoughts about where this definition should go. And, you know, we
cannot agree, you know. And certainly, you know, I'm sure you guys will have a hard time. But
when...when we look at it, the definition that's before you, I'll offer three...three, I guess,
modifications that people have said, okay? First of all, the elimination of the word
"for"--"food"--in that statement for commercial food production, I think people have testified
that putting "food production" will eliminate the flower growers. That is a group that is currently
supported. The second one was the $5,000 amount and Chair Victorino had to put some kind of
number in there. We actually thought about $35,000 and Clark said, no way, too many people
would be affected.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
MR. YAMASHIGE: I think Warren presented 20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Twenty.
MR. YAMASHIGE: And that's...that's as good a number as any. And then the third thing is, you know,
for this definition when we took out the County-zoned or... State-designated agriculture lands
we, in effect, opened it out. And I can see why we did it because it is a permitted use in other
zoning districts, like Rural, specifically. But if we could, I think--and Scott can correct me--we
currently recognize County-zoned or State-designated Agricultural lands for the real property tax
assessments. But they also, Real Property Tax, considers lands that are...dedicated to agriculture
as being able to get these agricultural assessments. And Scott can really explain it a whole lot
more than I can. But essentially it...it commits you to do agriculture activities on the land or you
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lose this...this entitlement. And with those three things, you know, with the 20,000 we've
discussed that we're not farmers. We don't know--I have onions in my backyard, or at least I had
them until I killed 'em. . .(laughter). . .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. YAMASHIGE: ...but we...we agreed that...an ag board made up of farmers would be a really
good way of...you know, if you don't qualify for the strict interpretation of this rule, that there is
a board that can say, you know, what you're doing is farming, you're not making the $20,000.
It's something that...there's some flexibility that allows other people to qualify. And my two
minutes are up. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, we didn't limit you to two minutes, but that's fine. Other...Mr. Hashimoto,
would you like to endeavor in answering Ms. Baisa's question...or Mr. Molina's question, I
should say?
MR. HASHIMOTO: Okay. Let me speak to you as a...from a farmer's standpoint. You know, I've
been in agriculture for a long time and also I'm a farm...fourth-generation farmer. And now that
I have a full-time job, it's really difficult to, you know, run the farm and have a full-time job. So
for gentleman farmers, you know, it'll...it'll be difficult to get any amount of--so, you know,
Warren's 20,000, I think, is...is pretty close. I would say from between 10 and 20,000.
Even...because we have...like persimmons, it's an orchard crop...it...you know, it's three
months out of the year, but, again, you have to maintain and do everything else. So if, you know,
it's...for a lot of people who don't know agriculture, it's very, very hard work. And for people,
you know, we all say gentleman farmers to try to say they're farmers, really haven't farmed,
because it's, you know, when you talk about taro farming, that's extremely...that's extremely
hard work. And vegetable farming, you know, you have to be there everyday. To be a part-time
farmer, you know, you have to have something, maybe flowers or orchard crops. Flowers
meaning protea. But, again, you have to think like a farmer to be able to make these type of
decisions and, you know, I would say 10 to 20,000 in that range would be pretty reasonable. And
I think a lot of the farmers, you know, if you look up in Kula there's many, many third-,
fourth-generation...farmers who are not...telling their kids not to farm. So they're not going to
farm. So what's gonna happen to their lands? I'm not sure but, you know, it's...it's a tough job.
So, you know, you have a rough decision ahead of you. But, you know, that range that I
mentioned would be really reasonable, I would think.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hashimoto. And I...I'm glad you bring your true perspective as
a family who has farmed Upcountry for many, many generations, yeah? And thank you very
much for that. Questions-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Mr. Chair.

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 2, 2010

CHAIR VICTORINO: --any other questions for...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Just a...just a follow...well, actually more of just a last
comment, you know, based on what I've heard from Mr. Yamashige and Mr. Hashimoto. It...it
sounds like to me this whole issue is about fairness, defining what is the true farmer and
obviously potential revenue for the County down the road in this area. And I think the longer we
wait, I think, you know, the frustration will build. But, and at the same time, you know, what do
we stand to lose as...as a County as well. So I appreciate the number you've thrown out,
Mr. Chairman, at 5,000. However, I'm open to adjusting that figure possibly to what
Mr. Hashimoto's considering, maybe up to ten, you know. But I...I think we should act, you
know, and act...act soon. So anyway-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --those are just my thoughts, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. And I have no qualms. Like I said, again, it
was...something that I just looked at because I heard 1,000, I heard 20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right, right.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I was hearing all kinds of number. So I said, oh, 5,000, you know. It kinda like
a fair place to start. And, again, starting point. That was all where...where I was beginning with
that number. So Ms., Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I'm intrigued with this idea of an ag
board. I don't know if this is true, but you know how you hear stuff that the poor Water Board
has a whole bunch of stuff to deal with and dealing with appeals of this kind would probably put
additional strain on their ability to get anything done. And then you have to wait. So this idea of
an ag board, Mr. Yamashige, can you tell us a little bit more? You're thinking of volunteers?
They be appointed? Who they might be? Of course, we'd want it to be independent. I...I think
it's a great idea. I don't know if it's a good idea. It's a great idea. . . . (chuckles). . ..
MR. YAMASHIGE: Mr. Chair, if I can defer to Scott.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: That's fine. If anybody wants to take the question, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine. Whoever...whoever wants to answer.
MR. TERUYA: You know, I've been on that Agriculture Committee with...with Warren several years
ago and we've met for like two or three years. The ag board would be a good idea. I really think
so because what we've tried to do is...well, we talked about the reason you have a ag board is,
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when we talked about, it was good for initial applications, yeah. The lease review, the initial
application is coming forth that we're gonna grant and give a subsidy to. Secondly, if you do not
meet a minimum threshold, you have the ability to go before the board to state your case. And, I
know we're talking about, oh, that's an exception, you might not need to meet the income
threshold. But there are situations on hardship. And a good example would be like an onion
farm if you just had a lot of rain and your whole crop got destroyed. You would have
some...some means to go through the board to...discuss why you didn't meet that income
threshold. So I think the Board is a good starting point in deciding what is and is not a viable
option. You also gonna get into crops where maybe they're doing forestry or trees and there may
be some time where the first set-up...several set-up years you're not gonna bring in that income,
so those are the exception.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it would then give you a venue if you had...you couldn't meet the
income threshold, there would give you a place to go.
MR. TERUYA: Yeah. And...and like I said, the start-up people are gonna get a hard time...getting that
initial income, because, you know, you're not gonna have time to, you know, to...do the crop in
the first couple years.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And since we want to grow agriculture, we better be sensitive to
allowing people to start up. But see, I'm like a lot of folks, I...I'm a black thumb farmer. If my
husband wasn't the farmer, we wouldn't have anything. But, you know, it's...it's just a very,
very difficult occupation and I think we need to try and, you know, I've heard Warren Watanabe
say this to me so many times that we need to help ag. We need to help ag. And so I've asked
him well, what does that mean? Can you tell me? And, really, it's financial because a lot of the
reasons why, like Clark says, families generationally have done it, but they can't do it anymore
because the rewards are not there. And the kids take on jobs that will pay them better and they
won't have to work, you know, everyday of the year and worry about the rain. So it...this is a
tough one. And, you know, I wanna thank you guys for your manao and the time you've spent
trying to help us work through this. This is not going to be easy. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Just one quick question for
Mr. Hashimoto. You know, in my earlier comments, I...I forgot to take into consideration the,
you know, the local person or the long-time resident who grow...you know, who wants to do
their own little gardening to help offset their expenses. And, you know, with all the push now for
victory gardens and sustainability, you mentioned the...the minimum of possibly at 10,000. Do
you see any kind of impact--and you know, you know a lot of farmers from all...all walks of life,
if you will, yeah, and I'm sure you know a lot of people who do a lot of small farming and...and
they're not there to make a killing or do anything...under the table, the majority of 'em I would
guess--do you see any impact if we were to set the minimum at 10,000? What kind of impact it
would have on the...the long-time resident who do their small...grow their little green onions
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and beans and whatnot to offset their expenses? Can you share...that perspective with us on
what...what...
MR. HASHIMOTO: Okay, you might, you know...you talk about, you know, not only backyarders-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MR. HASHIMOTO: --but you also have people that raise one or two head of cattle. You know, you
know, and that might...might affect them if we...you go to the figure of 10,000. It depends,
`cause lot of these backyard people also go up to Eddie Tam to sell their products and things like
that. But, again, most of these farmers' markets, you know, like I said, like Warren always says
the farm food safety is gonna be a big issue once it goes into effect. And the backyarders
probably couldn't, you know, sell at these venues. So, again, you know, there's multiple
problems. But if they're really small, you know, it might affect them, but hopefully they won't
use more than 30,000 gallons of water. So if they don't use more than 30,000 gallons of water,
then it won't affect them. And, you know, with two, three head of cattle, I don't think you're
gonna use that much water unless they irrigate their pastures.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Teruya.
MR. TERUYA: Just a quick comment. From the Real Property standpoint, the only thing I wanted to
point out was when we talk about sustainability, yeah, or additional, you know, part-time and
stuff like that, I'm wondering if you guys are gonna limit it by the designation on the land class
because...there's a lot of farming in urban areas as well. So if we're gonna talk about
subsistence, is that for subsistence for all or subsistence only on ag?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. That's a good point. Thank you, Mr. Teruya.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Didn't...I don't think we clarified that and we didn't bring it up as a discussion
point. Again, we're looking at water rates and a threshold for sales and what kinds of items or
kinds of production we'll be looking at. I don't think we went with ag or urban or rural or
anything of that nature. So, again, I don't wanna cross those boundaries again, you know, I think
we're, you know--so any other discussion on the item itself? Mr. Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Hashimoto, I'm...I'm just trying
to understand how us putting on a...a value...the...you were not supportive of 35,000, because
you feel that that's too high a threshold for a farmer to meet. Now the comment was made
earlier by the Water Department, yeah?
MR. HASHIMOTO: Well, I think the 35,000 would be difficult for maybe part-time farmers. You
know, there's some farmers like, you know, at the...you know, they do part-time. They work and
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they use that as subsistence, you know, up to, you know, 10, 10, 15,000. You know, 35,000 to
me, I think, is, you know, if a lot of these farmers maybe they wanna keep their land in ag but
they can't make enough and they would have to get a full-time job, then maybe, you know,
35,000 be way too much, I...I, in my opinion.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So you're suggesting...your suggestion is to
move down to 20 or you set a range between 10 and 20,000 as a threshold?
MR. HASHIMOTO: Yeah, because a lot of these farmers, you know, especially Upcountry they're in
their 70s or 80s and they still do part-time kind of farmers...and farming I mean, and I don't
think they can meet, you know--well, even I don't know how much you have to make as far as
getting Social Security. I don't know what the...the limit is. But it is...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So the...the original proposal of 5,000, you
would be not supportive of that?
MR. HASHIMOTO: Well, I'm...it's not that, not support it, but I think 5,000 would be on the border I
think. It depends, you know, like I think 10,000 would be more...more of a...in the commercial
category.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So, again, the distinction would be commercial
versus...well, I guess the 5,000...
MR. HASHIMOTO: You know, 5,000 would be commercial too, but I think...to receive...I mean to
weed out some of the non...you know, really non-farmers who are just taking advantage of the
tax or water rates.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So...
MR. HASHIMOTO: But it'll be...it's difficult. That's why I said, it's your decision but it's...it's really
difficult, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay, no, I'm just thinking if we're trying to encourage,
you know, farmers, then at the threshold if it's too high you're saying it makes it difficult for the
farmer. And at some point you're saying if it's too low, then you're going to allow too many to
take advantage of that...so...and I'm trying to look at giving the benefit to the person who is
farming, you know. And then if we don't...if we don't look at a lower threshold, then we're sort
of eliminating them all altogether.
MR. HASHIMOTO: Well, that's true, yeah, because 5,000 would include...certainly include a lot more,
you know, users to...to get the benefits of the water. But, again, you know, if...if we get
something like the...the water...not water but the agricultural board, you know, they could
determine that.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And then, you know, and when you trying to gauge
the...what threshold, does it depend on what kind of crop you're using or what your product is?
So isn't one considered higher value than another?
MR. HASHIMOTO: Well, I'm just saying that, like, vegetable crops, you know, you gotta tend
everyday. So most part-time farmers would either go into...ranching or maybe planting protea,
you know, some kind of flowers or tropicals or orchard crops like avocado or citrus where they
don't have to tend to it everyday. You know, when you go into vegetable crops then, you know,
it's...it's almost a daily-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.
MR. HASHIMOTO: --you know, daily occurrence.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA:
But isn't the...the value different, though?
The...because we're using...we're using dollar as a threshold. So that dollar amount is based on
some kind of value. So a farmer that grows avocados you're saying would be a different value
than a person who's growing a vegetable crop?
MR. HASHIMOTO: Well, the vegetable crops would, you know, if they're tending vegetable crops it's
almost a weekly harvest. But when you go orchard crops, maybe two, three months out of...out
of the year. So the income-type threshold...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So is the 35...yeah, so is the 35,000 threshold more
difficult for one than the other?
MR. HASHIMOTO: I would think so. Yeah. You...you know, like for avocadoes, you know, no way
they're gonna make 35,000. Vegetables, you know, if you're farming everyday, yeah, that's...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: You could make that threshold.
MR. HASHIMOTO: You could make that threshold. I mean depends how much...how many acres.
You know, like persimmons, you know, we can make the threshold because we got a big acreage
but...but the others...some other persimmon growers might not be able to.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So that number of...the threshold number then is...
MR. HASHIMOTO: Depends, yeah, on the crop.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Is...dependent on the...the crop. So that's why I wanna
understand how we're choosing that...that threshold and who's being impacted by that threshold
number itself. And that's why I would tend to wanna go on the lower side to get the benefit to
the farmer rather than eliminate or, you know...
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MR. HASHIMOTO: Yeah, that's why I went down to 10.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. HASHIMOTO: But...but, again, it depends on the crop also.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Any other questions? If not, I would like to make a...recommendation
with an amendment if this body would like to hear that?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. My recommendation is to amend the gross income amount to 10,000.
And, again, as you've heard from Mr. Hashimoto and from others that 10,000 in their mind
would be fairer and, again, that's what I was looking for all along, is a fair number. I think
20,000, 35,000 would eliminate a lot of...a lot of--not only part-time farmers, but maybe even
some that are struggling to make full-time, you know. So that would be my only...my
recommendation to amend the gross annual...minimum gross annual income to 10,000 instead of
5,000. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. There's another--oh, let's...let's take your
amendment first. I move that we amend the dollar amount from 5,000 to $10,000 in regards to
the definition of a agriculture consumer.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by Mr. Mateo. Let's discuss the
amendment first and I think you have something else you wanna add. And I will be willing to
entertain any other amendments, but go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: After hearing all of the discussion and especially from Mr. Hashimoto
and also Mr. Watanabe, I...I think $10,000 is a fair amount in regards to your proposal over here
this morning in regards to agricultural consumer, how to identify 'em.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other questions? Again, for water rates...for the purpose of
water rates, yeah. Okay. Yes, Mr. Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair, you know, in...in trying to...get some
understanding of how the threshold amount is being achieved or being suggested, then my
clarification, at least from Mr. Hashimoto here, is that there are different values for different
kinds of crops or...or...or things that are being produced by farmers. So I wanna make sure that
we don't eliminate those that are truly trying to meet that kind of threshold. But...and are using
that...that amount of water for true agriculture. So, you know, it's a nebulous thing right now,
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but if you have to come down to what really we're trying to do, I would wanna speak against this
motion and continue to look at the 5,000 because it makes more sense that we'll be more
inclusive than we would be exclusive in this regard, and only because you have helped me to
understand that there is value by the crop or the...the whatever is being produced. And...and
that to me is what I think we should be looking at in making this threshold tangible. So I wanna
advocate for the 5,000 as has been suggested. So I would be speaking...voting against the
10,000.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Kaho`ohalahala. Again, I know, the body and, you know, unless
there's more discussion, I will call for the question on the amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: At 10,000.
CHAIR VICTORINO: On the amendment. All those in favor of the amendment as stated, signify by
saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oppose?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Let the record show, one, two, three, four, five, six... six "ayes", one "no".
Mr. Pontanilla, you had--yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I voted no.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, you voted no. Excuse me. Okay, so five..."ayes" and two "noes", okay?
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VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino, Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Councilmembers
Mateo, Medeiros, and Molina.

NOES:

Councilmembers Baisa and Kaho`ohalahala.

EXC.:

None.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: APPROVE amendment.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Pontanilla, you had another amendment you wanted to bring forward?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So that previous motion was carried then?
CHAIR VICTORINO: That amendment carried, yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, I...I think, you know, Mr. Hashimoto also brought
out, you know, we say here for commercial food production and my amendment is to include the
flower growers to this agriculture consumer definition.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So you would insert that, "for agriculture"..."aquaculture and"..."for
aquaculture or"--go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: To take care of the flower growers here in this County.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. You wanna add flower growers or...or some...some language.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, maybe...maybe...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'd...I wanna explain why I voted no. And I'm concerned that
I...I know you wanna get this out, but I heard after today we have three issues that we need to
deal with. And one of 'em is like the elimination of "food" and what more else should be
covered in that definition. The other thing was the...the...where will this be allowed? Will it be
allowed as right now in any area or are we gonna restrict it to ag? So if we're gonna try to
complete this today, then we have to stay here and complete it and, you know, have a full
discussion of this. And that's the reason I voted no. I don't really have a whole, you know, bad
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thing about the 5,000, but I'm not feeling that we have all the information to try and pass it out of
Committee today. And if we do, then we're gonna have to amend this later on, because we're
gonna have to have more information. So, that...that--it's up to you. You're the Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, Ms. Baisa, first of all, let...let...let me go back to the...the second of your
two concerns where it says in what areas. Right now we do not have any distinguishing
threshold as far as other areas. So anywhere you have a farm and if you would fall under this
category, whether it's urban, rural, it doesn't make a difference at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct. But we haven't decided as a Committee whether we wanna
keep that or not. That was brought up by Mr...whoever--I'm sorry, I'm confused. We have a lot
of speakers today--who brought up the three concerns that were common among the...the
directors that got together. There were three concerns.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, I understand that. But those concerns were based upon all of the directors
getting together.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Again, we are just doing water rates, okay? All right, so you...you seem--never
mind. Okay. Mr. Pontanilla, go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. So the amendment would include the flower
growers. In this case here, after "food commercial"..."for commercial food production," add in
there, "flower grower"..."flower production"..."commercial flower production".
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, maybe Mr. Hashi , or Mr. Teruya can help us with more verbiage in that
sense. Go ahead, either one of you wanna take that on, please?
MR. TERUYA: I...I thought that it would be taken cared of if you just took out "food" and just be
"commercial production". That's up to you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Makes it easier that way.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. So you wanna propose that as an amendment?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. The proposal to eliminate the word "food" so it will read, "for
commercial production".
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Hashimoto--before I entertain a motion. Go ahead, Mr. Hashimoto.
MR. HASHIMOTO: Yeah, I think "commercial production" because you also have nursery products,
you got turf. So to...in order to cover everything.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: For everybody.
MR. HASHIMOTO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Mr. Hunt. Hold on, hold on. Mr. Hunt wants to interject. Go ahead.
MR. HUNT: In...in comparing the uses allowed by HRS and our own zoning code, the only other
questions I would raise is, does the Committee want to allow for forestry, biofuels or would that
be allowed under the definition?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Of commercial?
MR. HUNT: By removing "food".
CHAIR VICTORINO: Corp. Counsel, would...would you like to address that question as we remove
and just put "for commercial production"?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, well, it would fit within the...the concept of commercial production versus
commercial food production. I think the...what Director Hunt is referencing are these other
activities and I think a broad interpretation of the term "crop production" will cover...them. But
to be sure, you can always...slide 'em in.
CHAIR VICTORINO: . . .(Chuckles). . . I don't wanna slide nothing. I want it done.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. KUSHI: I mean since you're talking about it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah. But you would...in your interpretation, "crop production" would
cover forestry and other items that Mr. Hunt has presented?
MR. KUSHI: Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Questions in that regard?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nope.
CHAIR VICTORINO: So your amendment at this time, Mr. Pontanilla, is to remove the word...
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: "Food".
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CHAIR VICTORINO: "Commercial food production", remove the word "for"--I mean "food"--so it
would now read, for commercial production and all those...whose minimum annual income
would be 10,000, 'cause that's the amendment on the floor at this time.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time. But after hearing what Corp. Counsel is saying that it
should be "for commercial crop production" to handle Mr. Hunt's concern.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Is that what you said, Mr...
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hunt. If you can clarify?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Commercial production, yeah? Mr. Hunt?
MR. HUNT: We support deleting the word "food". If... if you're comfortable with the previous, up in
the second line, it says "crop production". If that is inclusive of forestry and biofuels and seed
crops, then we're okay. The...the alternative would be to simply add the word, "forestry",
"biofuels"...and then it's absolutely clear.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And so the amendment will...will be "for commercial
production".
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. . . .(Chuckles). . . Go ahead.
MR. KUSHI: Just a...just a comment. I mean, what...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, yes.
MR. KUSHI: ...what Director Hunt said is fine and well, but I'm...I'm not sure how forestry would
work and how would you get income from...from...forestry. I mean somebody can explain that
to me. 'Cause you still need to meet the minimum 10,000.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Hashimoto.
MR. HASHIMOTO: I think forestry might include, you know, maybe growing koa wood or-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
MR. HASHIMOTO: .--milo or something else.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah.
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MR. HASHIMOTO: Then it...and that'll include commercial, but if they're just growing it, you know,
for a forest, then it'll be no commercial value really.
MR. KUSHI: Okay, that's fine.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, is that clear enough? Okay. Ms. Baisa, you was raising your hand. Was
that to answer that question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. So the amendment that hasn't been seconded yet, I haven't
heard a second...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, thank you, Mr. Mateo. The amendment by Mr. Pontanilla and seconded by
Mr. Mateo is to read now--and I'll read the whole thing in its entirety. An agricultural consumer
means a customer that is actively engaging in crop production-MS. WILLENBRINK: Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Wait. Yes.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Consumer.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Did I--what did I say?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Customer.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, excuse me. That's three. . . .(sighs). . . It's been a long morning.
`Agricultural consumer' means a consumer that actively engages in crop production, livestock
raising, dairy farming, or aquaculture, for commercial production, and whose minimum gross
income--as amended--is $10,000. Okay, so the amendment on the floor is to remove the word,
"floor"--I mean, "food". Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, didn't we agree to add the forestry?
CHAIR VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, so it was deleted.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: No, it was never added.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It was...they said it would be cover--because forestry in the terminology of
Mr. Hashimoto was, if they're growing it for koa and all that other stuff, that would be crop
production. If they're growing it just for restorations or other reasons, there's no commercial
value.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I...I get nervous about not being clear 'cause we're gonna wind
up with somebody saying, what is a crop? Is it something you eat or . . .(chuckles). . . you know,
I...I...we may need some definitions.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Maybe not now but, you know, with the law we're gonna need
definition.
CHAIR VICTORINO: We can work on that to make sure that we are clear on what "crop production"
is. And, again, that's a nebulous that could go in many directions, but I think something at the
later point. Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Could be a cash crop.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Could be.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That may be coming.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Could be. That may be coming, too, and so that would incu..., incorporate it all,
then we have to make no changes. Okay, all right. So are we clear on Mr. Pontanilla's
amendment?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Any discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor-MS. WILLENBRINK: Chair, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --of the amendment to remove the word "food" in...in front of production,
signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
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CHAIR VICTORINO: All those oppose? Okay, so...one, two, three, four, five, six, seven of us, yeah.
There's seven of us, yeah. Seven, zero. Seven "ayes" and zero "noes". Okay? I gotta
even--six?

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino, Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Kaho`ohalahala, Mateo, Medeiros, and Molina.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

None.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
ACTION: APPROVE amendment.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Hi, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: What? There's seven?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seven.
CHAIR VICTORINO: There's seven. Somebody's yelling six at me and I'm like, I'm counting.
I'm--I'm included, right? Okay, yes. Go ahead.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, Chair, I just wanted to clarify for everyone that because this...Committee
votes by consensus toward...until the end, that you will still need to make the main motion...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. WILLENBRINK: ...and as revised, and then we'll move forward from there. Just for the minutes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. So we're doing all this by consensus. How's that sound?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Thank you.
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CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Okay. All right. So anything else you would like at this point to
discuss on this matter. If not, then I will make my recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I recommend...I will entertain a motion to pass on first reading the proposed bill
as revised, "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 14.01.040, MAUI
COUNTY CODE, TO ADD THE DEFINITION FOR AGRICULTURAL CONSUMER".
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It's been moved by Vice-Chair Pontanilla and moved by Member...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mateo.
CHAIR VICTORINO: ...Mateo. Okay. I hear voices coming at me. So I'm getting confused. Sorry,
everybody. It's been a long morning. I thank you guys for all your patience. Any more
discussion? Yes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, would you please read the motion?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Would you do me that favor just so that I will not make any more
mistakes? I already made three this morning.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Four.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Four. Counting down. You guys keep track around here. Please? I'm gonna
keep track of you guys--never mind. Stop it. Okay. Okay, Ms. Willenbrink. I almost said...
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes. As revised, the new definition would read, 'Agricultural consumer' means
a consumer that actively engages in crop production, livestock raising, dairy farming, or
aquaculture, for commercial production, and whose minimum gross income...annual income
from such activities is $10,000. I would also suggest that you may wanna include
nonsubstantive revisions in your motion, because I see that this bill was originally drafted in
2009.
CHAIR VICTORINO: If that's okay with the Committee.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Any nonsubstantive-- 68 -
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: --will be incorporated by Staff. Yes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm gonna be voting to support this with reservations and it's over
the 10,000, but I think I see where the...where the majority are.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other discussion? Yes, Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yes, Chair, I'm also concerned with that myself and,
you know, I'm trying to anticipate who's all going to be included in this and that...that's what
I'm...I'm trying to get a clear understanding of. But at this point in time, I'll support it but with
reservations.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Anything else? Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by saying
"aye"
COUNCIL MEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR VICTORINO: Oppose? None. Let the record show seven "ayes", two with reservation, and
no...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Noes.
CHAIR VICTORINO: ...no "noes".
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Zero.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Zero "noes". Well, no noes, zero noes, okay.

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino, Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Kaho`ohalahala, Mateo, Medeiros, and Molina.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

None.

ABSENT: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
MOTION CARRIED
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ACTION: Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill.

CHAIR VICTORINO: It's been a long morning. But, anyhow, I thank you for your patience. First of
all, I'd like to thank all the department heads for being here. I really am thank...thankful for all
their...their assistance. And it's been a long morning, but I'm gonna make one quick
announcement before I lose this...the...the...the...the Chair closes the meeting. All of us know
this past Saturday, this island...this State faced a very big potential catastrophe. And I...read in
the paper this morning--which many of us read--of all the citizens that went out of their way to
help others, both visitors and citizens in the time of need by taking in people, bringing water,
food, sharing and that...well, you know, the gentleman that said Maui is no ka oi when it comes
to water. Well, Maui is no ka oi in many other areas also. And that's one of 'em. So I wanna
thank those citizens, our emergency people, Fire, Police, the Mayor, and Civil Defense, all the
people that were working real hard to make sure our citizenry stayed safe. I'm up, up in Wailuku
Heights. I got to watch the whole thing unfold and it was amazing to watch that waters churn
that I'd...I'd never seen. And so I'm thankful we dodged the bullet. And for those who said we
overreacted, my answer to you is it's better to be safe than sorry. And that's the only way I could
ever live. And I thank the Mayor and...and everybody who participated in making this
community safe, even those...Mr. Kalani English, Senator English out in...and Mr. Medeiros out
in Hana, working hard to make sure that community stayed safe and all the communities across
the State. So thank you very, very much and at that point, I will now--also remind everybody we
have a Budget and Finance meeting at 1:30. Right, Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR VICTORINO: I was gonna say cancelled, but I didn't wanna say that. No, no, no. I making
trouble. Anyhow, thank you very much for all your patience. This meeting of the Water
Resource Committee, March 3" I [sic], is adjourned. . . (gavel).. .
ADJOURN: 12:23 p.m.
APPROVED:

MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, Chair
Water Resources Committee
wr:min:100302

Transcribed by: Reinette Kutz

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 2, 2010

CERTIFICATE

I, Reinette Kutz, hereby certify that the foregoing represents to the best of
my ability, a true and correct transcript of the proceedings. I further certify that I
am not in any way concerned with the cause.

DATED this 23 rd day of March, 2010, in Wailuku, Hawaii.

